EATON BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING Hollingsworth East Elementary School Cafeteria November 16, 2020 6:00 p.m.

I. Opening of the Meeting

A.	<u>Call to order</u> – President					
В.	Roll Call					
	E. Beeghly D. Durham B. Myers L. NobleT. Parks					
C.	Pledge of Allegiance					
D.	. Recognition of Visitors					
	 Allie Shafer and Heather Ludy, Butler County Success Program Liaisons, to discuss the Success Program during the 2020-2021 school year. 					
E.	Executive Session					
	To consider the compensation of a public employee or official.					
	The following individuals are invited to attend:					
	Motion by, second by to convene executive session.					
	Beeghly Durham Myers Noble Parks					
	President declares motion					
	President convenes executive session at p.m.					
	President resumes open session at p.m.					

II. <u>Treasurer's Business – Rachel Tait</u>

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEM - FINANCIAL

Action by the Board of Education in "Adoption of Consent Agenda Item" at this point of the agenda means that item A is adopted by one single motion unless a member of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Treasurer requests that any such item be removed from the "Consent Agenda Items" and voted on separately.

A. The Treasurer recommends approval of the following:

- 1. Approve minutes of the October 19, 2020 Regular Board Meeting.
- 2. Approve Five Year Forecast for FY21
- 3. Submission of Warrants.
- 4. Submission of Financial Report.
- 5. Submission of Investment Report
- 6. Approve FY21 Supplemental Appropriations
- 7. Approve moving Derek Lucas to Bachelors 150 on Teacher Salary Schedule, effective October 19, 2020.

Motion by		<u>,</u> second by		_
Discussion				
Beeghly	Durham	_ Myers	Noble	_ Parks
President declares motion				

III. Reports

- A. Miami Valley Career Technology Center Report Terry Parks
- B. Parks and Recreation Board Report Ben Myers
- **C.** Superintendent Report Jeff Parker
- D. Other Reports

IV. Old Business

V. <u>New Business</u>

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS - PERSONNEL

Action by the Board of Education in "Adoption of Consent Agenda Items" at this point of the agenda means that items A through C are adopted by one single motion unless a member of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Treasurer requests that any such item be removed from the "Consent Agenda Items" and voted on separately.

A. <u>Employment – Certificated Staff – Substitute Teachers/Tutors as Certified by the</u> Preble County Educational Service Center

The Administration recommends approval of the following substitute teachers/home instruction tutors for the 2020-2021 school year, as certified by the Preble County Educational Service Center.

Jacob Kamm

B. Indoor Track and Field Coaches

The Administration recommends approval of the Indoor Track and Field season beginning December 1, 2020 and concluding March 6, 2021 and approve the following employees and volunteers as Indoor Track and Field Coaches per OAT & CCC Indoor Championship requirements.

- 1. Scott Burnett
- 2. Brad Kramer
- 3. Randy McKinney
- 4. Mark Silvers
- 5. Dorothy Stoltz

C. <u>Amend Resolution 1920-073 – Employment – Certificated Staff</u>

The Administration recommends approval to amend resolution 1920-073, to reflect the employment of Hannah King, Teacher, effective January 4, 2021.

Motion by		<u>,</u> second by _		_
Discussion				
Beeghly	_ Durham	Myers	_ Noble	Parks
President declares motion				

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS - ADMINISTRATIVE

Action by the Board of Education in "Adoption of Consent Agenda Items" at this point of the agenda means that items D through I are adopted by one single motion unless a member of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Treasurer requests that any such item be removed from the "Consent Agenda Items" and voted on separately.

D. <u>Board Policy Updates – First Reading</u>

The Administration recommends the first reading of the following board policies (Attachment A).

- 1. Policy 1520 Employment of Administrators
- 2. Policy 1530 Evaluation of Principals and Other Administrators
- 3. Policy 2270 Religion in the Curriculum
- 4. Policy 2431 Interscholastic Athletics
- 5. Policy 3124 Employment Contract
- 6. Policy 5200 Attendance
- 7. Policy 5610 Removal, Suspension, Expulsion, and Permanent Exclusion of Students.
- 8. Policy 5611 Due Process Rights
- 9. Policy 6144 Investments

- 10. Policy 6152 Student Fees, Fines and Charges
- 11. Policy 6152.01 Waiver of School Fees for Instructional Materials
- 12. Policy 6325 Procurement Federal Grants/Funds
- 13. Policy 6423 Use of Credit Cards
- 14. Policy 6424 Procurement Cards
- 15. Policy 8800 Religious/Patriotic Ceremonies and Observances

E. Plan for Education of the Gifted

The Administration recommends approval of the 2020-2021 Plan for the Education of the Gifted (Attachment B).

F. Memorandum of Understanding - Winterguard

The Administration recommends approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between the Eaton Classroom Teachers Association and the Eaton Board of Education to include the position of Winterguard Advisor in the Academic Supplemental Salary Schedule (Attachment C).

G. <u>Memorandum of Understanding – After School Meeting Compensation</u>

The Administration recommends approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between the Eaton Classroom Teachers Association and the Eaton Board of Education to provide compensation to teachers who participate on District-wide committees (Attachment D)

H. Amend One-to-One Device Acceptable Use Policy

The Administration recommends approval to amend the One-to-One Device Acceptable Use Policy by modifying the fee to \$15 for grades 6-12 for the 2020-2021 school year.

I. Disposal of Textbooks

The Administration recommends approval to declare the following textbooks as obsolete and to dispose of them accordingly.

- 1. (58) My World History, Pearson, 2012
- 2. (19) American History of Our Nation, Prentice Hall, 2014
- 3. (33) History of US Beginnings to 1877, McDougal Littell, 1997
- 4. (57) World History Journey Across Time, McGraw-Hill, 2006

Motion by, seconded by				
Discussion				
Beeghly Durham	_ Myers	Noble	Parks	
President declares motion				

VI.

J. Executive Session

To discuss the employment of a public official or employee.				
The following individuals are invited to attend:				
	Motion by, second by _ executive session.		_ to convene	
	Beeghly Durham Myers	Noble	Parks	
	President declares motion	_		
	President convenes executive session atp.m.			
	President resumes open session at	p.m.		
<u>Adjournment</u>				
	Motion by	,secoi	nded by	
		,to adjourn th	e meeting.	
Discussion				
	Beeghly Durham Myers	Noble	Parks	
	President declares motion			
	President adjourns meeting at	p.m.		

Upcoming Meeting

Meeting: Date/Time:

Regular Board Meeting December 14, 2020 – 6:00 p.m.

East Elementary School Location:



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

EMPLOYMENT OF ADMINISTRATORS

Code

po1520 jlw 9.24.20

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

Last Revised

June 8, 2020

1520 - EMPLOYMENT OF ADMINISTRATORS

The Board of Education recognizes that it is vital to the successful operation of the District that administrative positions created by the Board be filled with highly qualified and competent personnel. The Board may contract with the governing board of the educational service center from which it otherwise receives services to conduct searches and recruitment of candidates for assistant superintendent, Principal, assistant principal, and other administrator positions.

The Board shall approve the employment, determine the compensation, and establish the term of said employment for each administrator employed by the Board. Individuals may be employed as administrators pursuant to a limited contract for a term not to exceed three (3) years, unless the individual has been employed by the Board as an administrator in the District for three (3) or more years, in which case his/her term of the contract shall be for not more than five (5) years and, unless the Superintendent recommends otherwise, not less than two (2) years. If, however, the Superintendent so recommends, the term of the contract of an individual who has been employed as an administrator in the District for three (3) years or more may be one year. All subsequent contracts granted to such individual must be for a term of not less than two (2) years and not more than five (5) years.

The Board shall only employ those candidates nominated by the Superintendent.

In accordance with the provisions of R.C. 3319.031, the Board may assign specified powers and duties to one or more administrators.

Any person employed as an assistant superintendent, Principal, assistant principal, or other administrator shall possess a valid certificate/license issued pursuant to Ohio law and shall file a copy of his/her certificate/license with the District.

As a prerequisite to employee pay, the Superintendent must first issue to the Treasurer a written statement that confirms each administrator has filed with the Superintendent both a copy of all valid licenses as well as copies of any reports required by the State Board or this Board to demonstrate his/her qualification to assume an educational administrator position. No administrator employed in a position for which licensure is required may be paid until evidence of such appropriate licensure for the position has been received by the Superintendent and transmitted to the Treasurer.

To the extent permitted by law, the Board may request the State Board of Education to issue a two (2) year alternative administrative specialist license or a one (1) year alternative principal license to a candidate

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

recommended by the Superintendent for an administrative position, provided the candidate is of good moral character and meets the requirements set forth by the State Board of Education.

Relatives of Board members may be employed by the Board, provided the member of the Board does not participate in any way in the discussion or vote on the employment when such a conflict of interest is involved.

Applications for employment as an administrator will not be accepted from any current Board member. If a Board member wishes to apply for a position on the administrative staff, his/her resignation must be accepted by the Board prior to submitting an application.

The employment of administrative staff members prior to approval by the Board is authorized when their employment is required to maintain continuity in the educational program.

Employment shall be recommended to the Board at the next regular meeting.

Prior to employment, the candidate selected must pass a background check performed by the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation and/or the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The candidate must also pass a pre-employment drug screening.

The Superintendent may recommend and the Board may approve the reemployment of an administrative staff member at any regular or special meeting held during the period beginning on the first day of January of the calendar year immediately preceding the year of expiration of the employment contract and ending on the first day of June in the year the employment contract expires.

The Board may, by a three-fourth's (3/4's) majority vote of its full membership, reemploy an assistant superintendent, Principal, assistant principal, or other administrator whom the Superintendent refuses to nominate. If need be, and to the extent permitted by law, the Board may request the State Board of Education to issue a two (2) year alternative administrative specialist license or a one (1) year alternative principal license to an administrator whom the Superintendent has refused to nominate for reemployment in an administrative position, provided the candidate is of good moral character and meets the requirements set forth by the State Board of Education.

Before taking action to renew or non-renew the contract of any administrator and prior to the first day of June of the year in which the administrator's contract expires, the Board shall notify each such administrator of the date his/her contract expires and inform the administrator that s/he may request a meeting with the Board to discuss its reasons for considering renewal or non-renewal of his/her contract. Upon the request of the administrator, the Board shall meet with him/her in executive session. The administrator shall be permitted to have a representative of his/her choice present at that meeting.

If the Board fails to provide the evaluations as required by Board Policy or if the Board fails to provide, following the request of the administrator, a meeting for the purpose of discussing the Board's reasons for considering renewal or non-renewal of the administrator's contract, then the administrator shall be automatically reemployed at the same salary plus any increments that may be authorized by the Board, and the term of reemployment shall be one (1) year, unless the individual has been employed as an administrator by the District for three (3) years or more in which case the reemployment shall be for a term of two (2) years.

Furthermore, an administrator shall be deemed reemployed upon expiration of his/her contract term unless the administrator notifies the Board to the contrary on or before the fifteenth day of June, or unless the Board either reemploys the administrator for a succeeding term or gives written notice of its intent not to reemploy the administrator on or before the first day of June in the year in which said contract expires. In such instances, the reemployment shall be at the same salary plus any increments that may be authorized by the Board, and the term of reemployment shall be one (1) year, unless the individual has been employed as an administrator by the District for three (3) years or more in which case the reemployment shall be for a term of two (2) years.

Any administrator's intentional misstatement of fact material to qualifications for employment or reemployment, or to the determination of salary, shall be considered by this Board to constitute grounds for dismissal.

11/4/2020

ROSIGNOCS® PL

All administrators shall become familiar with the policies of the Board and other such guidelines, regulations, memoranda, bulletins, and handbooks that pertain to their duties in the District. Any administrator employed by the Board who shall be guilty of any willful violation of the policies of the Board shall be guilty of gross insubordination and shall be subject to dismissal or such lesser penalty as the Board may prescribe.

Except by mutual agreement of the parties thereto, no administrator shall be transferred during the term of his/her contract to a position of lesser responsibility. Furthermore, no contract may be terminated or suspended except in accordance with State law.

The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines for the recruitment and selection of administrative staff.

© Neola 2020

Legal

R.C. 3319.01, 3319.02, 3319.031, 3319.07, 3319.16, 3319.17, 3319.171

R.C. 3319.27, 3319.36

Last Modified by Jessica Wing on September 21, 2020



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

EVALUATION OF PRINCIPALS AND OTHER ADMINISTRATORS

Code

po1530 jlw 9.24.2020

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

Last Revised

May 8, 2017

1530 - EVALUATION OF PRINCIPALS AND OTHER ADMINISTRATORS

Application

This policy shall apply to all persons employed by the Board of Education in a position requiring licensure as an administrator. This definition excludes school counselors but includes professional pupil services personnel and administrative specialists (or equivalent positions) who spend less than fifty percent (50%) of their time teaching or otherwise working directly in the presence of students.

This policy shall also apply to all persons employed in positions not requiring administrative licensure, but whose job duties enable them to be considered either a "supervisor" or "management level employee" as defined in R.C. 4117.01.

Procedures

General Requirements

The Superintendent shall implement a program of regular evaluation for all administrative personnel which includes the following elements:

- A. The evaluation process shall fairly attempt to measure the administrator's effectiveness in performing the duties set forth in his/her job description.
- B. A written evaluation document shall be produced for each evaluation. Each administrator shall be evaluated at least once annually.
- C. The evaluation shall be conducted by the Superintendent or his/her designee (such designation may be oral or in writing) prior to the Board's consideration of contract renewal or non-renewal, the Superintendent shall review the results of the evaluation process with the Board.

Specific Requirements for Building Principals and Assistant Principals

In addition to the above, procedures for the evaluation of District building principals and assistant principals will be based upon comparable standards as set forth in the policy adopted by the Board for the evaluation of

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

teachers pursuant to R.C. 3319.1117 which adopts the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System (OTES) but tailored to address the duties and responsibilities of building principals and assistant principals and the environment in which they work. The Superintendent is authorized to develop administrative guidelines for the procedural and substantive evaluation of building principals and assistant principals consistent with this policy and State law and is further authorized to access the Ohio Principal Evaluation System (OPES) model as a resource in the development and maintenance of an evaluation process, which is weighted equally on student growth measures and performance on the standards of the profession for principals and assistant principals.

Evaluation Instruments

The Superintendent may, in his/her discretion, utilize a single evaluation instrument for all administrative positions not subject to evaluation under OPES, instruments particularized for each position, or a combination of both types of instruments.

Evaluation instruments shall be developed and/or utilized by the Superintendent as s/he may determine in his/her best professional judgment and may be modified from time-to-time by the Superintendent in the exercise of such professional judgment. Specific Board approval of the evaluation instruments or modifications to such instruments shall not be required.

Basis for Evaluation

Each evaluation shall fairly attempt to measure the administrator's effectiveness in performing the duties of his/her job description.

Evaluations may be based upon the direct formal observations of the administrator, but may also consider informal or incidental observations and other relevant information which is within the knowledge of or brought to the attention of the evaluator. Out-of-school conduct may be considered if such conduct impacts the individual's effectiveness as an administrator or as a role model for students and staff.

Observations and Conferences

A pre-evaluation conference may be conducted if deemed necessary or advisable by the evaluator.

Formal observations may be made of the administrator, either announced or unannounced, but shall not be a required element of the evaluation process except for principals and assistant principals, who are subject to OPES. Whether formal observations are deemed appropriate to other administrative positions shall be determined by the evaluator on a case-by-case basis.

Following any formal observations and/or gathering of other evaluative data, and before finalizing any evaluation report, the evaluator shall arrange a post-evaluation conference at which the results of the evaluation process are discussed with the administrator. To the extent that any weaknesses or deficiencies have been identified in the evaluation process, the evaluator shall offer suggestions for improvement. Identified weaknesses and suggestions for improvement shall be identified in the evaluation report, but shall not be a required element of any evaluation. However, for principals and assistant principals, the requirements of OPES shall apply in determining the need for growth and/or improvement plans.

A final written evaluation report shall be produced in a manner deemed appropriate by the evaluator, in consultation with the administrator. This evaluation report may be combined with the evaluation instruments, or may be a separate document. The evaluation report shall be signed and dated by the administrator and the evaluator at the conclusion of the post-evaluation conference. The signature of the administrator shall not necessarily indicate that s/he agrees with the evaluator's comments or conclusions, but only that s/he has been made aware of such comments or conclusions. A copy of the evaluation report shall be provided to the administrator.

The final evaluation report for an administrator in the last year of his/her contract shall include the Superintendent's intended recommendation to the Board concerning the renewal or non-renewal of the contract.

Number and Timing of Evaluations

11/4/2020

BOARDDOCSW PL

A. Administrator Not in Final Year of Contract

An administrator not in the final year of his/her contract shall be evaluated at least once during the school year. A written copy of the evaluation report shall be provided to the administrator no later than the end of the administrator's contract year as defined by the administrator's annual salary notice.

B. Administrator in Final Year of Contract

An administrator whose contract is due to expire at the conclusion of the current school year shall have at least one (1) preliminary evaluation and one (1) final evaluation during such year. A written copy of the preliminary evaluation report shall be provided to the administrator at least sixty (60) days prior to any Board action on the renewal or non-renewal of the contract. A written copy of the final evaluation report shall be provided to the administrator at least five (5) days prior to any Board action on the renewal or non-renewal of the contract.

The final evaluation report for an administrator in the last year of his/her contract shall include the Superintendent's intended recommendation to the Board concerning the renewal or non-renewal of the contract. The Board will consider the evaluation results when deciding whether to renew or not renew an administrator's contract.

Meeting with Board

Each administrator shall be provided the opportunity to meet with the Board in executive session prior to the Board's action on his/her contract. In this meeting, the Board shall discuss its reasons for considering the renewal or non-renewal of the contract. The administrator may be accompanied by a representative of his/her choosing at the meeting. However, no witnesses or other persons may appear with or on behalf of the administrator without the express permission of the Board.

Written notice of the right to have such a meeting with the Board shall be provided in accordance with law to each administrator whose contract is expiring at the conclusion of the current school year.

Written Rebuttal

The administrator may, at any time following the receipt of an evaluation report, submit a written rebuttal, not to exceed three (3) pages in length, which shall be promptly attached to the evaluation report and any copies of the evaluation report which are retained in the District's records or submitted to the Board for its consideration.

Legal Effect

This policy and the procedures contained herein shall not create a legal expectancy of continued employment or a property interest in continued employment, and shall not be deemed a part of any individual administrator's contract or otherwise a contractual obligation of the Board.

To the extent that any of the procedures contained herein exceed the requirements of Ohio law, such procedures shall not be construed as a pre-condition to contract non-renewal and shall not prevent the Board from proceeding with a contract non-renewal which otherwise satisfies the minimum requirements of Ohio law.

© Neola 20202016

Legal

R.C. 3319.02, 3319.111, 3319.112, 4117.01

Last Modified by Jessica Wing on September 21, 2020



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

RELIGION IN THE CURRICULUM

Code

po2270 jlw 9.24.2020

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

2270 - RELIGION IN THE CURRICULUM

Based on the First Amendment protection against the establishment of religion in the schools, no Board employee will promote religion in the classroom or in the District's curriculum, or compel or pressure any student to participate in devotional exercises. Displays of a religious character must conform with Policy 8800 and AG 8800 A-C. Instructional activities shall not be permitted to advance or inhibit any particular religion or religion generally.

An understanding of religions and their effects on civilization is essential to the thorough education of young people and to their appreciation of a pluralistic society. To that end, curriculum may include as appropriate to the various ages and attainments of the students, instruction about the religions of the world.

The Board acknowledges the degree to which a religious consciousness has permeated the arts, literature, music, and issues of morality. The instructional and resource materials approved for use in the District's schools frequently contain religious references or concern moral issues that have traditionally been the focus of religious concern. That such materials may be religious in nature shall not, by itself, bar their use in the District. The Board directs that professional staff members employing such materials be neutral in their approach and avoid using them to advance or inhibit religion in any way.

The Board recognizes that religious traditions vary in their perceptions and doctrines regarding the natural world and its processes. The curriculum is chosen for its place in the education of the District's students, not for its conformity to religious principles. Students should receive unbiased instruction in the schools so they may privately accept or reject the knowledge thus gained, in accordance with their own religious tenets.

Accordingly, no student shall be exempted from attendance in a required course of study on the grounds that the instruction therein interferes with the free exercise of his/her religion. However, if after careful, personal review of the program's lessons and/or materials, a parent indicates to the school that either the content or activities conflict with his/her religious beliefs or value system, the school will honor a written request for his/her child to be excused from particular class periods for specified reasons. The student will be provided with alternate learning activities during the times of such parent requested absence.

No classroom teacher shall be prohibited from providing reasonable periods of time for activities of a moral, philosophical, or patriotic theme. No student shall be required to participate in such activities if they are contrary to the religious convictions of the student or his/her parents or guardians.

Students shall not b prohibited from engaging in religious expression in the completion of homework, artwork, or other written or oral assignments. Such assignments will be graded in the same manner as any

11/4/2020 BoardDocsw PL

other assignments. Students will neither be penalized nor rewarded based on the religious content of the student's work.

The Board acknowledges that it may not adopt any policy or rule respecting or promoting an establishment of religion or prohibiting any student from the free, individual, and voluntary exercise or expression of the student's religious beliefs. However, such exercise or expression may be limited to lunch periods or other noninstructional time periods when students are free to associate.

© Neola 20202013

Legal

See Reference: Policy 8800

See References: AGs 8800A, 8800B, 8800C

U.S. Const. Amend. 1 R.C. 3313.601, 3320.01, 3320.02, 3320.03

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on September 24, 2020

TI/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL



Book Policy Manual

Section Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETICS

Code po2431 jlw 9.24.2020

Status

Adopted October 12, 2015

Last Revised January 13, 2020

2431 - INTERSCHOLASTIC ATHLETICS

The Board of Education recognizes the value to the students of the District and to the community of a program of interscholastic athletics for students as an integral part of the total school experience.

The program should foster the growth of school loyalty within the student body as a whole and stimulate community interest in athletics.

The game activities and practice sessions should provide many opportunities to teach the values of competition and good sportsmanship.

The program of interscholastic athletics should provide students the opportunity to exercise and test their athletic abilities in a context greater and more varied than that which can be offered by a school or the School District alone. It should also offer an opportunity for career and educational development.

For purposes of this policy, the program of interscholastic athletics shall include all activities relating to competitive sport contests, games, events, or sport exhibitions involving individual students or teams of students of this District with those of another district.

The Board shall determine the standards of eligibility to be met by all students participating in the interscholastic program. Such standards shall require that each student be in good physical condition, be free of injury, and have fully recovered from illness before participating in any interscholastic athletic event.

No student may practice or compete in interscholastic athletics until the student submits a form signed by his/her parent or guardian, or by a person having care or charge of the student, affirming that each has received a concussion and head injury information sheet as prepared by the Ohio Department of Health. See Form 2431 F1 and Form 2431 F2.

In addition to the eligibility requirements established by the Ohio High School Athletic Association, to be eligible for any interscholastic extra-curricular activity, a student must have maintained at least a 2.0 grade-point average for the grading period previous to the one prior to the grading period in which s/he wishes to participate.

Students educated at home or enrolled in a nonpublic school who are permitted to participate on a District interscholastic team must fulfill the same academic, nonacademic, and financial requirements as any other participant. See Policy 9270.

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

If a student who becomes ineligible under these standards improves his/her grade point average during the current grading period to meet the eligibility standard, s/he may be reinstated at the beginning of the next grading period.

Restoration of an "Incomplete" Grade

If a student's failure to meet the academic eligibility requirements is due to an "incomplete" grade given in one or more courses which the student was taking during the grading period in question, the student may have his/her eligibility restored once the "incomplete" has been changed to a passing letter grade provided:

- A. the failure to complete the required coursework during the grading period was due to calamity day(s), family tragedy, or illness or accident as verified by a physician; and
- B. the "incomplete" was given in accordance with Board of Education grading policies and procedures and is applicable to all students in the school; and
- C. the previously scheduled work and/or exams is/are completed within the time period provided in Board policy for completing work required to convert an "incomplete" into a letter grade; and
- D. there is no evidence that the "incomplete" was given in order to afford the student extended time in order to provide the student tutoring or other educational services simply to avoid a failing grade.

Specific documentation of criteria listed above (Items A-D) must be submitted to the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA) (See AG 2431) in order to be considered by the Executive Director for such a ruling.

These same eligibility standards shall apply to all other co-curricular and extra-curricular activities sponsored by the District. (See Policy 2430)

Students identified as disabled under R.C. 3323 and the IDEA are subject to the eligibility standards established by this policy unless specifically exempted by the express terms of their individualized education program (IEP). An IEP can specify the criteria by which a grade will be determined for (a) course(s), given the student's individualized disability.

Since the primary purpose of the athletic program is to enhance the education of participating students as indicated in this policy, the Board places top priority on maximum student participation and the values of good sportsmanship and fair play.

The Board further adopts those eligibility standards set by the Constitution of the Ohio High School Athletic Association (OHSAA) that are consistent with State and Federal law, and shall review such standards annually to ascertain that they continue to be in conformity with the objectives of this Board.

No student shall be excused from a class or supervised study for an extended period of time to participate in interscholastic athletics. The Board further directs that only those students may participate in the program of interscholastic athletics who have:

- A. maintained a satisfactory academic record;
- B. attended school regularly;
- C. demonstrated good citizenship and responsibility;
- D. returned all school and athletic equipment;
- E. refrained from participation in a contest on a noninterscholastic team, or as an individual in the same sport during the school's season.

11/4/2020 BoardDocs@ PL

The Superintendent shall annually prepare, approve, and present to the Board for its consideration, a program of interscholastic athletics which shall include a complete schedule of events.

In order to minimize health and safety risks to student-athletes and maintain ethical standards, school personnel, coaches, athletic trainers, and lay coaches shall not dispense, supply, recommend, or permit the use of any drug, medication, or food supplement solely for performance-enhancing purposes. The Superintendent shall cause to be posted in all locker rooms in buildings that include students in any grade higher than the sixth grade, the following:

"Warning: Improper use of anabolic steroids may cause serious or fatal health problems, such as heart disease, stroke, cancer, growth deformities, infertility, personality changes, severe acne, and baldness. Possession, sale, or use of anabolic steroids without a valid prescription is a crime punishable by a fine and imprisonment."

The Superintendent shall develop appropriate administrative guidelines for the operation of the Athletic Program and a Code of Conduct for those who participate. Such guidelines should provide for the following safeguards:

A. Prior to enrolling in the sport:

- each participant shall submit to a thorough physical examination by a District-approved physician; and
- 2. parents shall report any past or current health problems along with a physician's statement that any such problems have or are being treated and pose no threat to the student's participation.
- B. Any student who is found to have a health condition which may be life-threatening to self or others shall not be allowed to participate until the situation has been analyzed by a medical review panel that has determined the conditions under which the student may participate. The District shall assume no liability for any student with a health condition who has been authorized to play by the parents and their physician but not by the District.
- C. Any student who incurs an injury requiring a physician's care is to have the written approval of a physician prior to the student's return to participation.
- D. Any student practicing for or competing in an interscholastic event who exhibits signs, symptoms, or behaviors consistent with having sustained a concussion or head injury shall be removed from the practice or competition by the student's coach (and/or the referee serving during the practice or competition).

Any student who has been removed from practice or competition by a coach or referee because s/he has exhibited signs, symptoms, or behaviors consistent with having sustained a concussion or head injury shall not be permitted to return to any practice or competition for which the coach or referee is responsible until both of the following occur:

- The student's condition is assessed by a physician or other health care provider authorized by the Board, in accordance with requirements set forth in R.C. 3313.539(E)(2), to assess such a student.
- The student receives written clearance that it is safe to return to practice or competition from a
 physician or other health care provider authorized by the Board, in accordance with
 requirements set forth in R.C. 3313.539(E)(2), to grant a such a clearance.

The Superintendent is also to develop guidelines for ensuring that sportsmanship, ethics, and integrity characterize the manner in which the athletic program is conducted and the actions of students who participate. Such guidelines should include:

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

- A. criteria for judging these important qualities;
- B. procedures by which these values will be communicated to students, parents, and supporters;
- C. means for monitoring the behavior of each of these groups to ensure their behavior reflects high standards.

The guidelines should also provide a set of behavioral expectations for each type of participant as well as a Sportsmanship Code of Conduct which each type of participant is to follow. The Superintendent is authorized to implement suitable disciplinary procedures against those who violate this Sportsmanship Code.

Students will be further informed that participation in interscholastic sports is a privilege and not a right and that they may be prohibited from all or part of their participation in such activities by authorized school personnel without further notice, hearing and/or appeal rights (See Policy 5610.05 - Prohibition From Extra-Curricular Activities).

In order to support the High School Athletic Association's program to strengthen sportsmanship, ethics, and integrity, the Board commits itself to:

- A. adopt policies (upon recommendation of the administration) which reflect the District's educational objectives and promote the ideals of good sportsmanship, ethics, and integrity;
- B. establish standards for athletic participation which reinforce the concept that athletic activities are a privilege, not a right;
- C. attend and enjoy school athletic activities, serving as a positive role model and expecting the same from parents, fans, participants, coaches, and other school personnel;
- D. support and reward participants, coaches, school administrators, and fans who display good sportsmanship;
- E. recognize the value of school athletic activities as a vital part of education.

No student will be denied the opportunity to participate in interscholastic athletics offered by a school in the District because the student has or is participating in college credit plus program as long as the student fulfills all academic, nonacademic and financial requirements.

Revised 11/6/17

© Neola 20202019

Legal

R.C. 2305.23, 2305.231, 3313.53, 3313.535, 3313.539, 3313.5311, 3313.5312

R.C. 3313.5341, 3313.752, 3315.062 Ohio High School Athletic Association

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on September 24, 2020



Book Policy Manual

Section Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

Code po3124 jlw 9.24.2020

Status

Adopted October 12, 2015

3124 - EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

It will be the responsibility of the Superintendent to ensure that all members of the professional staff execute a written employment contract in accordance with the legal requirements related to their position in the District.

Initial employment contracts for administrators may not exceed three (3) years in duration; following three (3) years of District employment, the term of subsequent contracts shall be no less than two (2) years nor more than five (5). Contracts will be automatically renewed for a period of two (2) years if the Board does not act upon renewal. If the Superintendent so recommends, the term of the contract of a person who has been employed by the School District as an Assistant Superintendent, Principal, Assistant Principal, or other administrator for three (3) or more years, may be one (1) year, but all subsequent contracts shall be not less than two (2) years or more than five (5) years.

The Superintendent is authorized to execute employment contracts for the Board upon approval of employment.

© Neola 2020

Legal R.C. 3319.02, 3319.08, 3319.11

Last Modified by Jessica Wing on September 21, 2020



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

ATTENDANCE

Code

po5200 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

Last Revised

January 13, 2020

5200 - ATTENDANCE

The educational program offered by this District is predicated upon the presence of the student and requires continuity of instruction and classroom participation. Attendance shall be required of all students enrolled in the schools during the days and hours that the school is in session or during the attendance sessions to which s/he has been assigned.

A student in grades 9 through 12 may be considered a full-time equivalent student provided the student is enrolled in at least five (5) units of instruction, as defined by State law, per school year.

In accordance with statute, the Superintendent shall require, from the parent of each student of compulsory school age or from an adult student who has been absent from school or from class for any reason, a statement of the cause for such absence. The Board of Education reserves the right to verify such statements and to investigate the cause of each single absence or prolonged absence.

The Board considers the following factors to be reasonable excuses for time missed at school:

- A. personal illness (a written physician's statement verifying the illness may be required)
- B. appointment with a health care provider
- C. illness in the family necessitating the presence of the child
- D. quarantine of the home
- E. death in the family
- F. necessary work at home due to absence or incapacity of parent(s)/guardian(s)
- G. observation or celebration of a bona fide religious holiday
- H. out-of-state travel (up to a maximum twenty-four (24) hours per school year that the student's school is open for instruction) to participate in a District-approved enrichment or extracurricular activity

Any classroom assignment missed due to the absence shall be completed by the student.

11/4/2020 BoardDocse PL

If the student will be absent for twenty-four (24) or more consecutive hours that the student's school is open for instruction, a classroom teacher shall accompany the student during the travel period to provide the student with instructional assistance.

- I. such good cause as may be acceptable to the Superintendent
- J. medically necessary leave for a pregnant student in accordance with Policy 5751
- K. service as a precinct officer at a primary, special or general election in accordance with the program set forth in Policy 5725

Attendance need not always be within the school facilities, but a student will be considered to be in attendance if present at any place where school is in session by authority of the Board.

The Board shall consider each student assigned to a program of other guided learning experiences to be in regular attendance for the program provided that s/he reports to such staff member s/he is assigned for guidance at the place in which s/he is conducting study, and regularly demonstrates progress toward the objectives of the course of study.

The Superintendent may excuse a student over fourteen (14) years of age from attendance at school for a future limited period for the purpose of performing essential work directly or exclusively for his/her parents or guardians. Such excuse should not exceed five (5) days and may at the discretion of the Superintendent be renewed for five (5) additional days. At no time, however, shall such excuse cause a student to be absent from school for a period of more than ten (10) consecutive days.

At the discretion of the Superintendent—or his/her designee, a student may be excused for a longer period of time than ten (10) days if a child's parent or guardian has recently died or become totally or partially incapacitated and there is no older brother or sister living in the home who is out of school. (The Superintendent may request a certificate of a physician attesting to the physical condition of the parent or guardian.)

Attendance shall be taken at the beginning of every block/period in buildings with block/period-based scheduling. Absences from a class block/period shall be accounted for.

Attendance shall be taken at the commencement of the school day in buildings with non-period-based schedules. Attendance for students arriving late or leaving early must be tracked and recorded.

Contacting the Parent/Guardian of an Absent Student

When a parent, guardian, or other person having care of a student has failed to initiate a telephone call or other communication notifying the school or building administration of the student's excused or unexcused absence within 120 minutes after the beginning of the school day, the attendance officer or designee for each school building shall make at least one (1) attempt to contact the parent, guardian, or other person having care of any student who is recorded as absent without legitimate excuse within 120 minutes after the beginning of each school day by a method designated by the Superintendent in accordance with Ohio law (see AG 5200).

Excessive Absences

When a student of compulsory school age is absent from school with combined nonmedical excused absences and unexcused absences in excess of thirty-eight (38) or more hours in one (1) school month, or sixty-five (65) or more hours in a school year, that student is considered "excessively absent" from school. The District or school shall notify the child's parent or guardian of the child's absences, in writing, within seven (7) school days after the date of the absence that triggered the notice requirement. At the same time written notice is given, any appropriate intervention action listed herein may be taken.

The following "medical excuses" will not count toward a student's excessive absence hours: (1) personal illness; (2) illness in the family necessitating the presence of the child; (3) quarantine of the home; (4) health care provider appointments (doctor, dentist, mental health provider, etc.); (5) medically-necessary

T1/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

leave for a pregnant student in accordance with Policy 5751; (6) death in the family; or (7) other set of circumstances the Superintendent deems on a case-by-case basis to be a good and sufficient cause for medical absence from school.

A medically excused absence occurs any time a student is out of school due to illness or medical visit (physician, dentist, mental health, etc.). A medical excuse for personal illness will be accepted in the form of doctor's note within five (5) school days of the absence or parent call-in on the day of the absence due to illness or doctor's visit. A student may have up to ten (10) medically excused absences without a doctor's note, but with a phone call from a parent/guardian. For the 2020-2021, medical excuse absences will be accepted through this process for students participating both in-person and remotely. This policy will be extended beyond ten (10) days if the student or someone in the student's family is in quarantine due to recognized pandemic/epidemic (e.g., COVID-19) or experiencing symptoms of the pandemic/epidemic.

Habitually Truant

A student will be considered habitually truant if the student is of compulsory school age and absent without a legitimate excuse for thirty (30) or more consecutive hours, for forty-two (42) or more hours in one (1) school month, or for seventy-two (72) or more hours in one (1) school year.

Legitimate excuses for the absence of a student who is otherwise habitually truant include but are not limited to:

- A. the student was enrolled in another school district;
- B. the student was excused from attendance in accordance with R.C 3321.04; or
- C. the student has received an age and schooling certificate.

Absence Intervention Team

To the extent required by law as determined on an annual basis, within ten (10) days of a student becoming habitually truant, the Principal shall assign the student to an absence intervention team.

Within fourteen (14) school days after the assignment of a student to an absence intervention team, the team shall develop an intervention plan for that student in an effort to reduce or eliminate further absences. Each intervention plan shall vary based on the individual needs of the student, but the plan shall state that the attendance officer shall file a complaint not later than sixty-one (61) days after the date the plan was implemented, if the child has refused to participate in, or failed to make satisfactory progress on, the intervention plan. Within seven (7) school days after the development of the plan, reasonable efforts shall be made to provide the student's parent/guardian/custodian, with written notice of the plan.

Each absence intervention team may vary based on the needs of each individual student but shall include a representative from the child's building, another representative from the child's building who knows the child, and the child's parent or parent's designee, or the child's guardian, custodian, guardian ad litem, or temporary custodian. The team also may include a counselor.

The members of the absence intervention team shall be selected within seven (7) school days of the student meeting the habitually truant threshold. Within the same period of seven (7) school days, the Principal shall make at least three (3) meaningful, good faith attempts to secure the participation of the student's parent/guardian/custodian, guardian ad litem, or temporary custodian on that team. A good faith attempt to secure the participation of the parent shall include, but not be limited to, contacting (or attempting to contact) the parent by telephone, email, or regular mail. If the student's parent responds to any of those attempts, but is unable to participate for any reason, the Principal shall inform the parent of the parent's right to appear by designee. If seven (7) school days elapse and the student's parent/guardian/custodian, guardian ad litem, or temporary custodian fails to respond to the attempts to secure participation, the attendance officer shall investigate whether the failure to respond triggers mandatory abuse or neglect reporting to the public children services agency. At the same time, the absence intervention team shall continue to develop an intervention plan for the child notwithstanding the absence of the child's parent/guardian/custodian, guardian ad litem, or temporary custodian.

TI/4/ZUZU BOARQUOCSW PI

Intervention Strategies

In order to address the attendance practices of a student who is habitually truant, the intervention team may, as part of an intervention plan, take any of the following intervention actions:

- A. provide counseling to the student
- B. request or require the student's parent to attend a parental involvement program
- C. request or require a parent to attend a truancy prevention mediation program
- D. notify the Registrar of Motor Vehicles of the student's absences
- E. take appropriate legal action

In the event that a student becomes habitually truant within twenty-one (21) school days prior to the last day of instruction of a school year, the Principal may, in his/her discretion, assign available school staff to work with the child's parent/guardian/custodian, guardian ad litem, or temporary custodian to develop an absence intervention plan during the summer.

The absence intervention process shall commence upon the first day of instruction of the next school year.

Reporting Requirements

The attendance officer shall file a complaint in the juvenile court against a student on the sixty-first (61st) day after the implementation of an absence intervention plan or other intervention strategies, provided that all of the following apply:

- A. The student is habitually truant.
- B. The school district or school has made meaningful attempts to re-engage the student through the absence intervention plan, other intervention strategies, and any offered alternatives to adjudication, if applicable.

If the student, at any time during the implementation phase of the absence intervention plan or other intervention strategies, is absent without legitimate excuse for thirty (30) or more consecutive hours or forty-two (42) or more hours in one (1) school month, the attendance officer shall file a complaint in juvenile court against that student, unless the absence intervention team has determined that the student has made substantial progress on the absence intervention plan.

In the event that the sixty-first (61st) day after the implementation of the absence intervention plan or other intervention strategies falls on a day during the summer months, the principal may extend the implementation of the plan and delay the filing of the complaint for an additional thirty (30) days from the first day of instruction of the next school year.

The Superintendent is authorized to establish an educational program for parents of truant students which is designed to encourage parents to ensure that their children attend school regularly. Any parent who does not complete the program is to be reported to law enforcement authorities for parental education neglect, a fourth class misdemeanor if found guilty.

Whenever any student of compulsory school age has sixty (60) consecutive hours in a single month or a total of ninety (90) hours of unexcused absence from school during the school year, s/he will be considered habitually absent under R.C. 3321.13(b)(2). The Board authorizes the Superintendent to inform the student and his/her parents, guardian, or custodian of the record of absences without a legitimate excuse as well as the District's intent to notify the Registrar of Motor Vehicles, if appropriate, and the Judge of the Juvenile Court of the student's unexcused absences and habitually absent status.

11/4/2020 BoardDocse PL

If a student who is habitually truant violates the order of a juvenile court regarding the student's prior adjudication as an unruly child for being a habitual truant, s/he may further be adjudicated as a delinquent child.

The District shall report to the Ohio Department of Education, as soon as practicable, and in a format and manner determined by the Department, any of the following occurrences:

- A. when a notice that a student has been absent with or without legitimate excuse for thirty-eight (38) or more hours in one (1) school month, or sixty-five (65) or more hours in a school year is submitted to a parent/guardian/or custodian;
- B. when a child of compulsory school age has been absent without legitimate excuse from the public school the child is supposed to attend for thirty (30) or more consecutive hours, forty-two (42) or more hours in one (1) school month, or seventy-two (72) or more hours in a school year;
- C. when a child of compulsory school age who has been adjudicated an unruly child for being a habitual truant violates the court order regarding that adjudication;
- D. when an absence intervention plan has been implemented for a child under this policy.

This policy was developed after consultation with the judge of the juvenile court of Preble County, with the parents, guardians, or other persons having care of the students attending school in the district, and with appropriate State and local agencies.

Tracking Remote Attendance for the 2020-2021 School Year

Consistent with the Remote Learning Plan submitted to the Ohio Department of Education, the District will provide a variety of instruction models, including both teacher-led remote learning and self-directed remote learning.

Student attendance in teacher-led remote learning (synchronous web-based instruction) shall be tracked in the same manner as hourly, in-person instruction. Teachers shall determine hourly attendance by evidence of student login and logoff data. Teachers are encouraged to verify meaningful attendance in a method selected by the teacher, such as an ungraded quiz at the close of a lesson, a survey or poll questions (unrelated to the lesson and unpredictable) at the end of the lesson, or asking students questions at random throughout a session.

<u>In addition to the reasons listed at the beginning of this policy, absences from teacher-led remote learning (synchronous web-based instruction) may be considered excused under the following circumstances, with written notice from a parent/guardian:</u>

- A. temporary internet outage for individual students or households;
- B. <u>unexpected technical difficulties for individual students or households, such as password resets or software upgrades occurring during a teacher-led remote learning lesson;</u>
- C. computer/device malfunction;
- D. <u>malfunction of a District-owned device for which the District is providing technical assistance, repair, or</u> replacement.

Attendance in self-directed remote learning (asynchronous) shall be tracked by evidence of participation, which may include, but is not limited to:

A. daily logins to learning management systems;

11/4/2020

ROBLODOCS A LT

- B. <u>daily interactions with the teacher to acknowledge attendance, which may include, but are not limited to, messages, emails, telephone calls, video chats or other formats that enable teachers to engage with students; and</u>
- C. assignment completion.

The teacher will determine the number of hours a typical student would take to complete an assignment and report those hours of attendance when the assignment is completed. A teacher may adjust the number of hours of attendance based on the length of time the student actually spent on the assignment, as reported by the student, parent, or other person with knowledge.

Revised 6/13/16 Revised 11/6/17 Revised 4/9/18

© Neola 20202019

Legal

R.C. 3313.664, 3313.668, 3317.034, 3321.01 et seq., 3321.13(B)(2), 3321.19,

3321.191

R.C. 3321.22, 3321.38, 3323.041, 3331.05

A.C. 3301-35-03(G), 3301-47-01, 3301-69-02

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on September 24, 2020



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

REMOVAL, SUSPENSION, EXPULSION, AND PERMANENT EXCLUSION OF STUDENTS

Code

po5610 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

Last Revised

May 20, 2019

5610 - REMOVAL, SUSPENSION, EXPULSION, AND PERMANENT EXCLUSION OF STUDENTS

The Board of Education recognizes that exclusion from the educational program of the schools, whether by emergency removal, out-of-school suspension, expulsion, or permanent exclusion, is the most severe sanction that can be imposed on a student in this District, and one (1) that cannot be imposed without due process. However, the Board has zero-tolerance of violent, disruptive or inappropriate behavior by its students.

No student is to be removed, suspended out-of-school, expelled and/or permanently excluded unless his/her behavior represents misconduct as specified in the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code approved by the Board. The Code shall also specify the procedures to be followed by school officials when implementing such discipline. In determining whether a student is to be suspended or expelled, District Administrators shall use a preponderance of evidence standard. In addition to the procedural safeguards and definitions set forth in this policy and the student/parent handbook, additional procedures and considerations shall apply to students identified as disabled under the IDEA, ADA, and/or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. (See Policy 5605 - Suspension/Expulsion of Students with Disabilities.)

Students may be subject to discipline for violation of the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code even if that conduct occurs on property not owned or controlled by the Board but where such conduct is connected to activities or incidents that have occurred on property owned or controlled by the Board, or conduct that, regardless of where it occurs, is directed at a District official or employee, or the property of such official or employee.

For purposes of this policy and the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code, the following shall apply:

- A. "Emergency removal" shall be the exclusion of a student who poses a continuing danger to District property or persons in the District or whose behavior presents an on-going threat of disrupting the educational process provided by the District. (See Policy 5610.03 "Emergency Removal")
- B. "Suspension" shall be the temporary exclusion of a student by the Superintendent, Principal, Assistant Principal, or any other administrator from the District's instructional program for a period not to exceed ten (10) school days. Suspension shall not_extend beyond the current school year if, at the time a suspension is imposed, fewer than ten (10) days remain in the school year.

TT/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

The Superintendent may instead require a student to participate in a community service program or another alternative consequence for a number of hours equal to the remaining part of the period of the suspension. The student shall be required to begin such a community service program or alternative consequence during the first full weekday of summer break.

In the event, the student fails to complete the required community service or the assigned alternative consequence, the Superintendent may determine the next course of action. Such course of action, however, shall not include requiring the student to serve the remaining time of the suspension at the beginning of the following year.

The procedures for suspension are set forth in the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code and Policy 5611 - Due Process Rights.

A student who is suspended shall be permitted to complete any classroom assignments missed because of the suspension.

C. "Expulsion" shall be the exclusion of a student from the schools of this District for a period not to exceed the greater of eighty (80) school days or the number of school days remaining in a semester or term in which the incident that gives rise to the expulsion takes place or for one (1) year as specifically provided in this policy and the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code. Only the Superintendent may expel a student. The procedures for expulsion are set forth in the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code and Board Policy 5611 "Due Process Rights".

When making a determination whether or not a student will be expelled or permanently excluded under this policy, the Superintendent shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315 - Information Management (i.e. "Litigation Hold")) created and/or received as part of an investigation.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law (e.g., R.C. 3319.321) – e.g., student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District's records retention schedule.

1. Firearm or Knife

Unless a student is permanently excluded from school, the Superintendent shall expel a student from school for a period of one (1) year for bringing a firearm or knife capable of causing serious bodily injury to a school building or on to any other property (including a school vehicle) owned, controlled, or operated by the Board, to an interscholastic competition, an extra-curricular event. or to any other school program or activity that is not located in a school or on property that is owned or controlled by the Board, except that the Superintendent may reduce this period on a case-by-case basis in accordance with this policy. Similarly, the Superintendent shall expel a student from school for a period of one (1) year for possessing a firearm or knife capable of causing serious bodily injury at school or on any other property (including a school vehicle) owned, controlled, or operated by the Board, at interscholastic competition, an extra-curricular event, or at any other school program or activity that is not located in a school or on property that is owned or controlled by the Board, except the Superintendent may reduce this period on a case-by-case basis in accordance with this policy. The expulsion may extend, as necessary, into the school year following the school year in which the incident that gives rise to the expulsion takes place. The Superintendent shall refer any student expelled for bringing a firearm (as defined in 18 U.S.C. 921(a)(3)) or weapon to school to the criminal justice or juvenile delinquency system serving the District.

A firearm is defined as any weapon, including a starter gun, which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, the frame or receiver of any such weapon, any firearm muffler or silencer, or any destructive device. A destructive

11/4/2020

HORIGUOCSIKI PI

device, includes, but is not limited to any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, bomb, grenade, rocket having a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, mine, or another similar device.

A knife capable of causing serious bodily injury is defined as any weapon or cutting instrument consisting of a blade fastened to a handle; a razor blade; or any similar device (including sharp, metal martial arts weapons such as ninja throwing stars) that is used for, or is readily capable of, causing death or serious bodily injury.

The Superintendent may, in his/her sole judgment and discretion, modify or reduce such expulsion in writing, to a period of less than one (1) year, on a case-by-case basis, upon consideration of the following:

- a. Applicable State or Federal laws and regulations relating to students with disabilities (for example, where the incident involves a student with a disability and the misconduct is determined by a group of persons knowledgeable about the child to be a manifestation of the student's disability);
- b. The degree of culpability given the age of the student and its relevance to the misconduct and/or punishment and/or evidence regarding the probable danger posed to the health and safety of others, including evidence of the student's intent and awareness regarding possession of the firearm or knife; capable of causing serious bodily injury; and/or
- c. The academic and disciplinary history of the student, including the student's response to the imposition of any prior discipline imposed for behavioral problems.

2. Violent Conduct

If a student commits an act at school, on other school property, at an interscholastic competition, extra-curricular event, or any other school program or activity and the act:

a. would be a criminal offense if committed by an adult;

and

 results in serious physical harm to person(s) as defined in R.C. 2901.01(A)(5), or to the property as defined in R.C. 2901.01(A)(6)

the Superintendent may expel the student for a period of up to one (1) year. The Superintendent may extend the expulsion into the next school year or reduce the expulsion as necessary on a case-by-case basis as specified below. The student need not be prosecuted or convicted of any criminal act to be expelled under this provision.

The Superintendent may, in his/her sole judgment and discretion, reduce such expulsion to a period of less than one (1) year, on a case-by-case basis, upon consideration of the following:

 a. applicable State or Federal laws and regulations relating to students with disabilities (for example, where the incident involves a student with a disability and the misconduct is determined by a group of persons knowledgeable about the child to be a manifestation of the student's disability);

or

 other extenuating circumstances, including, but not limited to, the academic and disciplinary history of the student, including the student's response to the imposition of any prior discipline imposed for behavioral problems.

If at the time of the expulsion, there are fewer days remaining in the school year than the number of days of the expulsion, the Superintendent may apply any or all of the remaining period to the following school year.

3. Bomb Threats

If a student makes a bomb threat to a school building or to any premises at which a school activity is occurring at the time of the threat, the Superintendent may expel the student for a period of up to one (1) year. The Superintendent may extend the expulsion into the next school year or reduce the expulsion as necessary on a case-by-case basis as specified below. The student need not be prosecuted or convicted of any criminal act to be expelled under this provision.

The Superintendent may, in his/her sole judgment and discretion, reduce such expulsion to a period of less than one (1) year, on a case-by-case basis, for the following reasons:

 a. for students identified as disabled under the IDEA, ADA, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, upon recommendation from the group of persons knowledgeable of the student's educational needs;

or

 other extenuating circumstances, including, but not limited to, the academic and disciplinary history of the student, including the student's response to the imposition of any prior discipline imposed for behavioral problems.

If at the time of the expulsion, there are fewer days remaining in the school year than the number of days of the expulsion, the Superintendent may apply any or all of the remaining period to the following school year.

D. "Permanent exclusion" shall mean the student is banned forever from attending a public school in the State of Ohio. (See Policy 5610.01)

If a student is expelled for more than twenty (20) school days or for any period of time that extends into the next school year, the Superintendent shall provide the student and his/her parents with the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of those public or private agencies in the community which offer programs or services that help to rectify the student's behaviors and attitudes that contributed to the incident(s) that caused the expulsion.

Suspension or Expulsion of Students in Grades Pre-Kindergarten through 3

- A. 2019-2020 school year, your District must reduce the number of out-of-school suspensions and expulsions issued to students in grades pre-K through 3 for offenses not listed in paragraphs A-D below by twenty-five percent (25%), using the numbers reported for that category for the 2018-2019 school year as a baseline.
- B. 2020-2021 school year, your District must reduce the number of out-of-school suspensions and expulsions issued to students in grades Pre-K through 3 for offenses not listed in paragraphs A-D below by fifty percent (50%), using the numbers reported for that category for the 2018-2019 school year as a baseline.
- C. 2021-2022 school year and thereafter, your District may only issue out-of-school suspensions and expulsions to students in grades Pre-K through 3 for the offenses listed in paragraphs A-D below.

Beginning with the 2019-2020 school year, except as permitted by law, suspension or expulsion proceedings shall not be initiated against a student in any of grades Pre-kindergarten through three unless the student has committed the following acts:

A. The student brings a firearm or knife capable of causing serious bodily injury to a school building or on to any other property (including a school vehicle) owned, controlled, or operated by the Board, to an interscholastic competition, an extra-curricular event, or to any other school program or activity that is

11/4/2U2U BOARQDOCSW PL

not located in a school or on property that is owned or controlled by the Board, or possesses a firearm or knife capable of causing serious bodily injury at school or on any other property (including a school vehicle) owned, controlled, or operated by the Board, at interscholastic competition, an extracurricular event, or at any other school program or activity that is not located in a school or on property that is owned or controlled by the Board.

- B. The student commits an act at school, on other school property, at an interscholastic competition, extra-curricular event, or any other school program or activity and the act: 1) would be a criminal offense if committed by an adult; and 2) results in serious physical harm to person(s) as defined in R.C. 2901.01(A)(5), or to property as defined in R.C. 2901.01(A)(6).
- C. The student makes a bomb threat to a school building or to any premises at which a school activity is occurring at the time of the threat.
- D. The student engages in behavior of such a nature that suspension or expulsion is necessary to protect the immediate health and safety of the student, the student's fellow classmates, the classroom staff and teachers, or other school employees.

Prior to suspending or expelling a student in any of grades Pre-K through 3, the Principal shall, whenever possible, consult with a mental health professional under contract. If the events leading up to the student's suspension or expulsion from school indicate that the student is in need of additional mental health services, the student's Principal or the District's mental health professional shall assist the student's parent or guardian with locating providers or obtaining such services, including referral to an independent mental health professional, provided such assistance does not result in a financial burden to the District or the student's school.

If a student in any of grades Pre-K through 3 is suspended or expelled, the student shall be afforded the same notice and hearing, procedural, and educational opportunities as set forth in Board policy and the law. The suspension or expulsion of a student in any of grades Pre-K through 3 shall not limit the Board's responsibilities with respect to the provision of special education and related services to such student in accordance with Board policy and the law. Further, the Board shall not be limited in its authority to issue an in-school suspension to a student in any of grades Pre-K through 3, provided that the in-school suspension is served in a supervised learning environment.

If the Superintendent determines that a student's behavior on a school vehicle violates school rules, s/he may suspend the student from school bus-riding privileges for the length of time deemed appropriate for the violation and remediation of the behavior. Any such suspension must comply with due process and the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent to provide for options to suspension/expulsion of a student from school which may include alternative educational options.

The Superintendent shall initiate expulsion proceedings against a student who has committed an act that warrants expulsion under Board policy even if the student withdraws from school prior to the hearing or decision to impose the expulsion. The expulsion must be imposed for the same duration it would have been had the student remained enrolled.

The Board may temporarily deny admittance to any student who has been expelled from the schools of another Ohio district or an out-of-state district if the student's expulsion period set by the other district has not expired. The expelled student shall first be offered an opportunity for a hearing. This provision also applies to a student who is the subject of a power of attorney designating the child's grandparent as the attorney-in-fact or caretaker authorization affidavit executed by the child's grandparent and is seeking admittance into the schools of this District in accordance with Policy 5111.

The Board may temporarily deny admittance to any student who has been suspended from the schools of another Ohio district if the student's suspension period set by the other district has not expired. The suspended student shall first be offered an opportunity for a hearing before the Board.

T1/4/20/20 BoardDocs® PL

When a student is expelled from this District, the Superintendent shall send written notice to any college in which the expelled student is enrolled under Postsecondary Enrollment Options at the time the expulsion is imposed. The written notice shall indicate the date the expulsion is scheduled to expire.

If the expulsion is extended, the Superintendent shall notify the college of the extension.

The Superintendent may require a student to perform community service in conjunction with or in place of a suspension or expulsion. The Board may adopt guidelines to permit the Superintendent to impose a community service requirement beyond the end of the school year in lieu of applying the expulsion into the following school year.

A copy of this policy is to be posted in a central location in each school and made available to students and parents upon request. Key provisions of the policy should also be included in the parent-student handbook.

Revised 11/6/17

© Neola 20202019

Legal

R.C. 2919.222, 3313.534, 3313.649, 3313.66, 3313.661, 3313.662, 3313.663

R.C. 3313.664, 3313.668, 3321.13 (B)(3) and (C), 3327.014

18 U.S.C. Section 921

20 U.S.C. 3351, 20 U.S.C. 7151, 20 U.S.C. 8921

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on September 24, 2020



Book Policy Manual

Section Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title DUE PROCESS RIGHTS

Code po5611 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted October 12, 2015

Last Revised December 10, 2018

5611 - DUE PROCESS RIGHTS

The Board of Education recognizes that students have limited constitutional rights when it comes to their education.

Accordingly, the Board establishes the following procedures which District Administrators shall use when dealing with students:

A. Student subject to suspension:

When a student is being considered for an out-of-school suspension by the Superintendent, principal, or other administrator:

- The student will be informed in writing of the potential suspension and the reasons for the proposed action.
- 2. The student will be provided an opportunity for an informal hearing to challenge the reason for the intended suspension and to explain his/her actions.
- 3. An attempt will be made to notify parents or guardians by telephone if a suspension is issued.
- 4. Within one (1) school day of the suspension the Superintendent, principal, or other administrator will notify the parents, guardians, or custodians of the student. The notice will include the reasons for the suspension and the right of the student, parent, guardian, or custodian to appeal to the Board or its designee; the right to be represented at the appeal; and the right to request the hearing be held in executive session if before the Board. The notice shall also specify that if the student, parent, guardian, or custodian intends to appeal the suspension to the Board or its designee, such notice of appeal shall be filed, in writing, with the Treasurer of the Board or the Superintendent within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date of the notice to suspend. If the offense is one for which the District may seek permanent exclusion, then the notice will contain that information.
- 5. Notice of this suspension will also be sent to the:

11/4/2UZU BOARDUOCSWY PL

- a. Superintendent;
- b. student's school record (not for inclusion in the permanent record).
- 6. If a student leaves school property without permission immediately upon violation (or suspected violation) of a provision of the Student Code of Conduct/Student Discipline Code or prior to an administrator conducting an informal hearing as specified above, and the student fails to return to school on the following school day, the principal, assistant principal, Superintendent, or any other administrator, may send the student and his/her parent(s)/guardian(s) notice of the suspension, and offer to provide the student and/or his/her parents an informal hearing upon request to discuss the reasons for the suspension and to allow the student to challenge the reasons and to explain his/her actions, any time prior to the end of the suspension period.

The first Appeal of Suspension is to be made to the Superintendent.

The Second Appeal of Suspension to the Board or its designee

The student who is eighteen (18) or older or the student's parent(s) or guardian(s) may appeal the suspension to the Board. They may be represented in all such appeal proceedings.

A verbatim record will be kept of the hearing which may be held in executive session at the request of the student, parent, or guardian if held before the Board.

The procedure to pursue such appeal will be provided in regulations approved by the Superintendent. Notice of appeal must be filed, in writing, with the Treasurer or the Superintendent within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date of the notice to suspend.

While a hearing before the Board may occur in executive session, the Board must act in public.

Appeal to the Court

Under Ohio law, appeal of the Board's or its designee's decision may be made to the Court of Common Pleas.

B. Students subject to expulsion:

When a student is being considered for expulsion by the Superintendent:

- 1. The Superintendent will give the student and parent, guardian, or custodian written notice of the intended expulsion, including reasons for the intended expulsion.
- 2. The student and parent or representative have the opportunity to appear before the Superintendent or designee to challenge the proposed action or to otherwise explain the student's actions. The written notice will state the time and place to appear, which must not be earlier than three (3) school days nor later than five (5) school days after the notice is given, unless the Superintendent grants an extension upon request of the student or parent.
- 3. Within one (1) school day of the expulsion, the Superintendent will notify the parents, guardians, or custodians of the student and Treasurer of the Board. The notice will include the reasons for the expulsion and the right of the student, parent, guardian, or custodian to appeal to the Board or its designee; the right to be represented at the appeal; and the right to request the hearing be held in executive session if before the Board. The notice shall also specify that if the student, parent, guardian, or custodian intends to appeal the expulsion to the Board or its designee, such notice of appeal shall be filed, in writing, with the Treasurer of the Board or the Superintendent within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date of the notice of expulsion. If the offense is one for which the District may seek permanent exclusion, then the notice will contain that information.

Appeal of Expulsion to the Board

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

A student who is eighteen (18) or older or a student's parent(s) or guardian(s) may appeal the expulsion by the Superintendent to the Board. They may be represented in all such appeal proceedings and will be granted a hearing before the Board.

A verbatim record will be kept of the hearing which may be held in executive session at the request of the student, parent, or guardian if it is held before the Board.

The procedure to pursue such appeal will be in accordance with regulations approved by the Superintendent. Notice of appeal must be filed, in writing, within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date of the Superintendent's decision to expel with the Treasurer of the Board or the Superintendent.

While a hearing before the Board may occur in executive session, the Board must act in public.

Appeal to the Court

Under State law, the decision of the Board or its designee may be further appealed to the Court of Common Pleas.

C. Students subject to emergency removal:

Students whose conduct warrants emergency removal shall be dealt with in accordance with the rights and procedures outlined in Policy 5610.03 – Emergency Removal.

D. Students subject to permanent exclusion:

Students whose conduct is that for which permanent exclusion is warranted shall be dealt with in accordance with the rights and procedures outlined in Policy 5610.01 – Permanent Exclusion of Nondisabled Students.

E. Students subject to suspension from bus riding/transportation privileges:

Students whose conduct warrants suspension from bus riding and/or transportation services shall be dealt with in accordance with the rights and procedures outlined in Policy 5610.04 - Suspension of Bus Riding/Transportation Privileges.

The Superintendent shall ensure that all members of the staff use the above procedures when dealing with students. In addition, this statement of due process rights is to be placed in all student handbooks in a manner that will facilitate understanding by students and their parents.

In determining whether disciplinary action set forth in this policy is to be implemented, District

Administrators shall use a preponderance of evidence standard. Further, any individual charged with making a disciplinary determination under this policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315 - Information Management (i.e. "Litigation Hold")) created and/or received as part of an investigation.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law (e.g., R.C. 3319.321) — e.g., student records and confidential medical records.

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District's records retention schedule.

<u>In addition, this statement of due process rights is to be placed in all student handbooks in a manner that will facilitate understanding by students and their parents.</u>

These procedures shall not apply to in-school disciplinary alternatives including in-school suspensions. An in-school suspension is one served entirely in a supervised learning environment within a school setting. Nor shall these disciplinary alternative procedures apply to students who are prohibited by authorized school personnel from all or part of their participation in co-curricular, interscholastic, and/or noninterscholastic extra-curricular activities.

TI/4/2020 BORTOLOCS® PL

© Neola 20202018

Legal

R.C. 3313.20, 3313.66, 3313.661

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on September 24, 2020

BOARDUOCSW PL



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

INVESTMENTS

Code

po6144 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

6144 - INVESTMENTS

The Board of Education authorizes the Treasurer to make investments of available monies from the funds of the District in securities authorized by State law. These shall include:

- A. bonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or those for which the faith of the United States is pledged for payment of principal and interest thereon but does not include stripped principal or interest obligations of such obligations;
- B. bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities directly issued by a Federal government agency or instrumentality;
- C. interim deposits in Board-approved depositories;
- D. bonds and other obligations of the State, or the political subdivisions of this State, provided that, with respect to bonds or other obligations of political subdivisions, all of the following apply the:
 - 1. bonds or other obligations are payable from the political subdivision's general revenues and backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision
 - 2. bonds or other obligations are rated, at the time of purchase, in the three (3) highest classifications established by at least one (1) nationally recognized standard rating service and purchased through a registered securities broker or dealer.
 - 3. aggregate value of the bonds or other obligations does not exceed twenty percent (20%) of interim monies available for investment at the time of purchase, and
 - 4. Treasurer is not the sole purchaser of the bonds or other obligations at original issuance.
 - 5. the bonds or other obligations mature within ten (10) years from the date of settlement
- E. no-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in A. and B. above or repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided such investments are made only through eligible institutions authorized by R.C. 135.03;
- F. the Ohio Subdivision Fund (STAR Ohio).

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

Under no circumstances may the Treasurer invest in a derivative as defined by the Revised Code, reverse repurchase agreements, or other funds prohibited by law. The Treasurer shall also not make investments which s/he does not reasonably believe can be held until the maturity date or leverage any investment.

No investment shall be made under division (D), as described above, unless the Treasurer has completed additional training that has been approved by the Treasurer of State and is either conducted by or provided under the supervision of the Treasurer of State.

The Treasurer is also authorized to enter into written repurchase agreements with any eligible institution in accordance with R.C. 135.03 provided that under the terms of the agreement the eligible institution agrees unconditionally to repurchase any of the securities listed in divisions (A) through (E), above. Such agreements may be either overnight or within a time not to exceed thirty (30) days and must comply with the requirements of R.C. 135.14(E).

Upon a two-thirds (2/3's) vote of its members, the Board may authorize the Treasurer to invest up to a maximum of forty percent (40%) of the District's interim funds in either of the following:

- A. commercial paper notes issued by a for-profit corporation, business trust or association, real estate investment trust, common-law trust, unincorporated business, or general or limited partnership which has assets exceeding \$500,000,000. Such notes must:
 - be rated at the time of purchase in the highest classification established by at least two (2) rating services;
 - have an aggregate value that does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the outstanding commercial paper of the issuing entity;
 - 3. mature within 180 days after purchase.
 - 4. be limited to the aggregate of five percent (5%) of interim monies available for investment at the time of purchase, when issued by a single issuer.

No investment shall be made under this provision unless the Treasurer has completed additional training that has been approved by the Treasurer of State and is either conducted by or provided under the supervision of the Treasurer of State.

B. Bankers acceptances of banks that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") and that mature no later than 180 days after purchase.

Except as provided in Section D above or as otherwise provided by law, investments made by the Treasurer must mature within five (5) years, from the date of settlement, unless they are matched to a specific obligation or debt of the District.

The Treasurer shall prepare annually and submit to the Board, the Superintendent of Public Instruction, and the Auditor of State, on or before August 31st, a report listing each investment made pursuant to (A) and (B) above, during the preceding fiscal year, income earned from such investments, fees and commissions paid in connection with the investments, and any other information required by the Board, Superintendent, and the Auditor of State.

The purpose of the investments is to maximize the returns on the District's excess cash balances consistent with safety of those monies and with the desired liquidity of the investments.

In making investments authorized by R.C. 135.14, the Treasurer may retain the services of an investment advisor, provided the advisor is licensed by the Division of Securities under R.C. 1707.141, or is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and possesses experience in public funds investment management, specifically in the area of State and local government investment portfolios, or the advisor is an eligible institution in accordance with R.C. 135.03.

TT/4/20/20 BoardDocse PL

Whenever the Treasurer classifies public money as interim funds, the Treasurer must notify the Board within thirty (30) days. If the Board does not agree with the Treasurer's classification or investment(s), the Board may order the Treasurer to sell or liquidate any investment(s) or deposits. The Board's order will specifically describe the investment(s) or deposit(s) and fix the date upon which they are to be sold or liquidated for cash at the current market price. Neither the Treasurer nor the members of the Board will be held accountable for any loss occasioned by sales or liquidations of investment(s) or deposit(s) at prices lower than their cost. Any loss or expense incurred in making such sales or liquidation is payable as other expenses of the Treasurer's office.

Unless the District's annual portfolio of investments is \$100,000 or less, the Treasurer must place on file with the Auditor of State a written investment policy that has been approved by the Board of Education and signed by all entities conducting investment business with the Board. Earnings on an investment may become a part of the fund from which the investment was made, unless otherwise specified by law.

The Treasurer, acting in accord with the law, may withdraw funds from approved public depositories or sell negotiable instruments prior to maturity.

Provided the Board has no outstanding obligation(s) with respect to a loan received under the authority of R.C. 3313.483, the Treasurer of State and the Board issuing obligations under R.C. Chapter 133 that mature within one (1) year from the original date of issuance may enter into an agreement providing for:

- A. the purchase of those obligations by the Treasurer of State on terms and subject to conditions set forth in the agreement;
- B. the payment by the Board to the Treasurer of State of a reasonable fee as consideration for the agreement of the Treasurer of State to purchase those obligations.

© Neola 20202014

Legal

R.C. 133.23, 135.01-.21, 135.22, 45, 135.142, 3317.06, 3315.01, 3315.40, 5705.10



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

STUDENT FEES, FINES, AND CHARGES

Code

po6152 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

6152 - STUDENT FEES, FINES, AND CHARGES

The Board of Education will provide the necessary textbooks and/or electronic textbooks required by the course of study free of charge for its students. The Board may charge fees for any additional materials used in the course of instruction. The Board may furnish these additional materials free of charge to students determined to have a serious financial need. Any waiver of fees shall be made pursuant to Policy 6152.01The Board may, however, need to levy certain charges to students to facilitate the utilization of other appropriate learning materials used in the course of instruction. If the District determines that a student is in serious financial need, it may choose to provide any or all such materials free of charge. Any such waiver of these charges shall be made in accordance with Policy 6152.01.

A charge shall not exceed the combined cost of the material used, freight and/or handling charges, and nominal add-on for loss. Money received from resale of such material shall be returned to the Treasurer with an accurate accounting of all transactions.

The Board will not charge a fee to a student who is eligible for a free lunch under the National School Lunch Act and the Child Nutrition Act of 1966 for any materials needed to enable the student to participate in a course of instruction. However, the Board may nonetheless charge a fee for materials needed for a student to participate in an extracurricular activities student enrichment program or tools, equipment, and materials that are necessary for workforce-readiness career-technical education training program that may be retained by the students after completion of the course.

Fees

For the purposes of this policy, "school fees" or "fees" means any monetary charge approved by the Board of Education and collected by the District from a student or the parent(s) or guardian of a student as a prerequisite for the student's participation in any curricular or extra-curricular program of the District.

- A. "School fees" include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - 1. all charges for required workbooks and instructional materials
 - all charges and deposits collected by a school for use of school property (e.g., locks, towels, laboratory equipment)

11/4/2020

BOARDDOCSW PL

- 3. charges for field trips made during school hours, or made after school hours if the field trip is a required or customary part of a class or extra-curricular activity
- 4. charges or deposits for uniforms or equipment related to varsity and intramural sports, or to fine arts programs
- 5. charges to participate in extra-curricular activities
- 6. charges for supplies required for a particular class or for gym uniforms
- 7. graduation fees
- 8. school records fees
- 9. school health service fees
- B. "School fees" do not include:
 - 1. library fines and other charges made for the loss, misuse, or destruction of school property;
 - 2. charges for the purchase of class rings, yearbooks, pictures, diploma covers, or similar items;
 - charges for optional travel undertaken by a school club or group of students outside of school hours;
 - 4. charges for admission to school dances, athletic events, or other social events;
 - 5. optional community service programs for which fees are charged (e.g., preschool before and after-school child care, recreation programs).

A charge shall not exceed the combined cost of the material used, freight and/or handling charges, and nominal add-on for loss. Money received from resale of such material shall be returned to the Treasurer with an accurate accounting of all transactions.

A charge shall not exceed the combined cost of the outside service provided or material used, freight and/or handling charges. Money received from resale of such material, if any, shall be returned to the Treasurer with an accurate accounting of all transactions.

Fines

When school property, equipment, or supplies are damaged, lost, or taken by a student, a fine will be assessed. The fine will be reasonable, seeking only to compensate the school for the expense or loss incurred.

The late return of borrowed books or materials from the school libraries will be subject to appropriate fines.

Any fees, fines, and/or other charges collected by members of the staff shall be turned in to the person responsible for making banking deposits within one (1) business day after collection.

In accordance with R.C. 3313.642, failure to pay fees and fines may result in the withholding of grades and credit. In the event the above course of action does not result in the fee being collected, the Board authorizes the Treasurer to take the student and/or his/her parents to Small Claims Court for collection. Under no circumstances will the Board withhold the grades, credits, official transcripts, diploma, IEPs, or Section 504 Plans of a student for nonpayment of fees for materials used in the course of instruction, if a complaint has been filed at any time in a juvenile court alleging that the student is an abused, neglected, or dependent child, or if the student has been adjudicated an abused, neglected, or dependent child. Further the Board will transfer immediately the grades, credits, official transcripts, IEPs, or Section 504 Plans of a student upon the receipt of either another district's or school's request for those records pursuant to R.C. 3313.672, or a juvenile judge's order under R.C. 2151.272. The Superintendent may request a copy of any

TIT4/2020 BOARDDOCS® PL

order regarding a child's custody or placement issued pursuant to a complaint filed under R.C. 2151.27. The Board, however, will not withhold records required to be transferred pursuant to this paragraph pending receipt of a copy of the order.

For convenience to families, the Board of Education may enter into an agreement with one or more credit card/online payment processing vendors to facilitate online payment of fees, fines, and charges.

Parents/guardians or students may elect but are not required to make payments online. Vendors will comply with all Board policies and procedures related to confidentiality and security of information transmitted electronically. Payees will be notified of any processing or other nominal fees that may be charged for use of an online payment system before the transaction is completed.

Annually the District will report to the Ohio Department of Education the number of students for whom it sent transcripts pursuant to R.C. 3313.642(D), and the total amount of unpaid fees lost due to compliance with that provision.

Nothing in this policy restricts the right of access of a parent or student to school records or to receive copies of such records, as required by Federal and State laws.

© Neola 2013

Legal

R.C. 2151.272, 3313.642, 9.38

National School Lunch Act, 60 Stat. 230 (1946), 42 U.S.C. 1751 (as amended)

Child Nutrition Act of 1966, 80 Stat. 885, 42 U.S.C. 1771



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

WAIVER OF SCHOOL FEES FOR INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

Code

po6152.01 jlw 09.24.20

Status

Adopted

October 12, 2015

Last Revised

December 11, 2017

6152.01 - WAIVER OF SCHOOL FEES FOR INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

The Eaton Community School District <u>mayshall</u> waive fees assessed by the District for instructional materials only for students <u>who demonstrate a serious financial needwhose parent(s) or guardian are unable to afford them</u>. The Superintendent may, as deemed necessary, establish additional procedures to supplement the procedures established in this policy regarding the requests for the waiver of fees. This waiver does not include District fees associated with extra-curricular activities or student enrichment programs that are not part of a course of instruction.

Additionally, the District may charge fees for tools, equipment, and materials, as specified, that are necessary for workforce-readiness <u>career-technical education training programs</u> that may be retained by the students after completion of the course.

Eligibility Standards

Students eligible for a waiver of school fees include, but are not limited to, the following:

- A. Students who qualify for aid under Ohio Works First (R.C. 5107) or Disability Assistance (R.C. 5115).
- B. Students who qualify for free lunch under the National School Lunch Act and the Child Nutrition Act of 1966.

Students who qualify for free lunch after the start of the school year may request a partial refund that will be prorated based on the amount of the school year that remains.

Notification to Parents

- A. Annually the substance of this policy shall be communicated in writing to the parent(s) or guardian of all students in the District.
- B. The first bill or notice sent to parents or guardians who owe fees shall state:

11/4/2020

BOARDDOCS® PL

- 1. The District will waive fees for persons unable to afford them in accordance with its policy.
- 2. The procedure for applying for a fee waiver, and the name, address and telephone number of the person to contact for information concerning a fee waiver.

Procedures for Resolution of Disputes

- A. A parent(s) or guardian who cannot pay school fees may write a letter requesting a waiver of fees to the Superintendent. The letter must contain the following:
 - 1. name(s) of student(s)
 - 2. name of parent(s) or guardian(s)
 - 3. address of parent(s) or guardian(s)
 - 4. phone number of parent(s) or guardian(s)
 - 5. school where child(ren) attend(s)
 - 6. reason for request for waiver of fees

The Superintendent shall have the authority to review the waiver request and request such further information, if any, as s/he deems necessary in order to make a decision on that request.

- B. No fee shall be collected from any parent(s) or guardian who is seeking a fee waiver in accordance with the District's policy until the District has acted on the initial request or appeal (if any is made), and the parent(s) or guardian have been notified of the decision.
- C. If the Superintendent denies a request for fee waiver, then a copy of the decision shall be mailed to the parent(s) or guardian within fifteen (15) school days of receipt of the request. The decision shall state the reason for the denial and shall inform the parent(s) or guardian of the right to appeal, including the process and timelines for that action. The denial notice shall also include a statement informing the parent(s) or guardian that reapplication may be made for a waiver any time during the school year, if circumstances change. The decision of the Superintendent is final.

Nondiscrimination

The Board expects all staff members to exercise the utmost care to see that, as a result of their actions or comments, students cannot differentiate between those students whose parents are unable to purchase required instructional materials or pay required fees and those whose parents can.

© Neola 20202011

Legal

R.C. 3313.642

National School Lunch Act, 60 Stat. 230 (1946), 42 U.S.C. 1751 (as amended)

Child Nutrition Act of 1966, 80 Stat. 885, 42 U.S.C. 1771



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

PROCUREMENT - FEDERAL GRANTS/FUNDS

Code

po6325 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted

June 13, 2016

Last Revised

May 20, 2019

6325 - PROCUREMENT - FEDERAL GRANTS/FUNDS

Procurement of all supplies, materials, equipment, and services paid for from Federal funds or District matching funds shall be made in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local statutes and/or regulations, the terms and conditions of the Federal grant, Board of Education policies, and administrative procedures.

The Superintendent shall maintain a procurement and contract administration system in accordance with the USDOE requirements (2 CFR 200.317-.326), including affirmative steps for small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises, for the administration and management of Federal grants and Federally-funded programs. The District shall maintain a contract administration system that requires contractors to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders. Except as otherwise noted, procurement transactions shall conform to the provisions of the District's documented general purchasing Policy 6320 and AG 6320.

All District employees, officers, and agents who have purchasing authority shall abide by the standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees, officers, and agents engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts as established in Policy 1130, Policy 3110 and Policy 4110 - Conflict of Interest.

The District will avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Additionally, consideration shall be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. And, where appropriate, an analysis shall be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach. These considerations are given as part of the process to determine the allowability of each purchase made with Federal funds.

To foster greater economy and efficiency, the District may enter into State and local intergovernmental agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.

Competition

All procurement transactions paid for from Federal funds or District matching funds shall be conducted in a manner that encourages full and open competition and that is in accordance with good administrative practice and sound business judgment. In order to promote objective contractor performance and eliminate an unfair competitive advantage, the District shall exclude any contractor that has developed or drafted

11/4/2020 BoardDocse PL

specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals from competition for such procurements.

Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include, but are not limited to, the following:

- A. unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business
- B. unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements
- C. noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts
- D. organizational conflicts of interest
- E. specification of only a "brand name" product instead of allowing for an "or equal" product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant requirements of the procurement
- F. any arbitrary action in the procurement process

Further, the District does not use statutorily or administratively imposed State, local, or tribal geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, unless 1) an applicable Federal statute expressly mandates or encourages a geographic preference; or 2) the District is contracting for architectural and engineering services, in which case geographic location may be a selection criterion provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract.

To the extent that the District uses a pre-qualified list of persons, firms or products to acquire goods and services that are subject to this policy, the pre-qualified list includes enough qualified sources as to ensure maximum open and free competition. The District allows vendors to apply for consideration to be placed on the list annually.

Solicitation Language

The District shall require that all solicitations made pursuant to this policy incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it shall conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible.

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a "brand name or equivalent" description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient requirements of a procurement. The specific features of the named brand which shall be met by offers shall be clearly stated; and identify all requirements which the offerors shall fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.

The Board will not approve any expenditure for an unauthorized purchase or contract.

Procurement Methods

The District shall utilize the following methods of procurement:

A. Micro-purchases

Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed \$10,000. To the extent practicable, the District shall distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-purchases may be made without soliciting

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

competitive quotations if the Superintendent considers the price to be reasonable. The District maintains evidence of this reasonableness in the records of all purchases made by this method.

B. Small Purchases

Small purchase procedures provide for relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, supplies, and other property that does not exceed the competitive bid threshold of \$250,000. Small purchase procedures require that price or rate quotations shall be obtained from an adequate number of qualified sources.

C. Sealed Bids

Sealed, competitive bids shall be obtained when the purchase of, and contract for, single items of supplies, materials, or equipment which amounts to more than \$250,000 and when the Board determines to build, repair, enlarge, improve, or demolish a school building/facility the cost of which will exceed \$50,000.

In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions shall be present:

- 1. a complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available:
- two (2) or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the business;
- 3. the procurement lends itself to a firm-fixed-price contract and the selection of the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.

When sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:

- Bids shall be solicited in accordance with the provisions of State law and Policy 6320. Bids shall be solicited from an adequate number of qualified suppliers, providing sufficient response time prior to the date set for the opening of bids. The invitation to bid shall be publicly advertised.
- 2. The invitation for bids will include product/contract specifications and pertinent attachments and shall define the items and/or services required in order for the bidder to properly respond.
- All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; bids will be opened publicly.
- 4. A firm-fixed-price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest responsible bidder. Where specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation cost, and life cycle costs shall be considered in determining which bid is lowest. Payment discounts may only be used to determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken.
- 5. The Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids for sound documented reason.

D. Competitive Proposals

Procurement by a competitive proposal, normally conducted with more than one (1) source submitting an offer, is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids or in the case of a recognized exception to the sealed bid method.

If this method is used, the following requirements apply:

1. Contracts shall be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered.

The District may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby competitors' qualifications are

11/4/2020

BOSTOLOGSW PL

evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort.

- 2. The District shall use its written method for conducting technical evaluations of the proposals received and for selecting recipients.
- 3. Proposals shall be solicited from an adequate number of sources.
- Requests for proposals shall be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their relative importance. Any response to the publicized requests for proposals shall be considered to the maximum extent practical.

E. Noncompetitive Proposals

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals allows for solicitation of a proposal from only one (1) source and may be used only when one (1) or more of the following circumstances apply:

- 1. the item is available only from a single source
- 2. the public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation
- the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the District
- 4. after solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate
- F. Noncompetitive Purchases Through Educational Service Centers (ESCs)
 - 5. Under State law, the Board of Education may enter into a contract with an educational service center (ESC) that authorizes the ESC to make purchases for supplies, materials, equipment, and services or the delivery of services on the District's behalf. These contracts promote operational efficiency and cost savings, and further enhance the educational experience for our students. Purchases made through such contracts are exempt from competitive bidding.

The District may apply for approval from ODE to use a noncompetitive purchasing method to procure personnel-based services from an ESC only when the following criteria are met:

- the ESC posts a list of all services it provides including costs of these services on its website;
- 2. the ESC has been designated as "high performing" by the Ohio Department of Education, and
- 3. ODE as the passthrough state entity has determined that the ESC was substantially in compliance with all audit rules and guideline during the most recent audit conducted by the Auditor of State

The Treasurer/CFO will submit an application and any required documentation to ODE on the designated form requesting approval for use of a noncompetitive purchasing method for personnel services. Purchases will not be made until the application is approved. Notice of approval will be maintained by the Treasurer/CFO.

Contract/Price Analysis

11/4/2020 BoardDocs@ PL

The District shall perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement action in excess of \$250,000, including contract modifications. A cost analysis generally means evaluating the separate cost elements that make up the total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price, without looking at the individual cost elements.

The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation; however, the District shall come to an independent estimate prior to receiving bids or proposals.

When performing a cost analysis, the District shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration is given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.

Time and Materials Contracts

The District uses a time and materials type contract only 1) after a determination that no other contract is suitable, and 2) if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time and materials type contract means a contract whose cost to the District is the sum of the actual costs of materials, and direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general and administrative expenses, and profit.

Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-materials contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, the District sets a ceiling price for each contract that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the District shall assert a high degree of oversight in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls.

Suspension and Debarment

The District will award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed procurement. All purchasing decisions shall be made in the best interests of the District and shall seek to obtain the maximum value for each dollar expended. When making a purchasing decision, the District shall consider such factors as 1) contractor integrity; 2) compliance with public policy; 3) record of past performance; and 4) financial and technical resources.

The Superintendent shall have the authority to suspend or debar a person/corporation, for cause, from consideration or award of further contracts. The District is subject to and shall abide by the nonprocurement debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, 2 CFR Part 180.

Suspension is an action taken by the District that immediately prohibits a person from participating in covered transactions and transactions covered under the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR chapter 1) for a temporary period, pending completion of an agency investigation and any judicial or administrative proceedings that may ensue. A person so excluded is suspended. (2 CFR Part 180 Subpart G)

Debarment is an action taken by the Superintendent to exclude a person from participating in covered transactions and transactions covered under the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR chapter 1). A person so excluded is debarred. (2 CFR Part 180 Subpart H)

The District shall not subcontract with or award subgrants to any person or company who is debarred or suspended. For contracts over \$25,000, the District shall confirm that the vendor is not debarred or suspended by either checking the Federal government's System for Award Management, which maintains a list of such debarred or suspended vendors at www.sam.gov; collecting a certification from the vendor; or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with that vendor. (2 CFR Part 180 Subpart C)

Bid Protest

The District maintains the following protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to procurements and, in all instances, discloses information regarding the protest to the awarding agency.

11/4/2020 BoardDocse PL

A bidder who wishes to file a bid protest shall file such notice and follow procedures prescribed by the Request For Proposals (RFPs) or the individual bid specifications package, for resolution. Bid protests shall be filed in writing with the Superintendent within seventy-two (72) hours of the opening of the bids in protest.

Within five (5) days of receipt of a protest, the Superintendent shall review the protest as submitted and render a decision regarding the merits of the protest and any impact on the acceptance and rejection of bids submitted. Notice of the filing of a bid protest shall be communicated to the Board and shall be so noted in any subsequent recommendation for the acceptance of bids and awarding of contracts.

Failure to file a notice of intent to protest, or failure to file a formal written protest within the time prescribed, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings.

Maintenance of Procurement Records

The District maintains records sufficient to detail the history of all procurements. These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price (including a cost or price analysis).

Revised 12/10/18

© Neola 20202019

Legal

2 C.F.R. 200.317 - .326

R.C. 3313.843 - 3313.846



Book Policy Manual

Section Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title USE OF CREDIT CARDS

Code po6423

Status

Adopted October 12, 2015

Last Revised December 10, 2018

6423 - USE OF CREDIT CARDS

The Board of Education recognizes the value of an efficient method of payment and recordkeeping for certain expenses.

The Board, therefore, authorizes the use of District credit cards. The name of the District shall appear on each District credit card and check related to a credit card account held by the District. A "credit card account" shall include any bank-issued credit card account, store-issued credit card account, financial institution-issued credit card account, financial depository-issued credit card account, affinity credit card account, or any other card account allowing the holder to purchase goods or services on credit or otherwise transact with the account, and any debit or gift card account related to the receipt of grant monies. The term expressly excludes any procurement card account, gasoline or telephone credit card account, or any other card account where merchant category codes are in place as a system of control for use of the account.

The authorization, handling and use of credit cards have been established to provide a convenient and efficient means to purchase goods and services from vendors. Credit cards, however, shall not be used in order to circumvent the general purchasing procedures established by State law and Board policy. The Board affirms that credit cards shall only be used in connection with Board-approved or school-related activities and that only those types of expenses that are for the benefit of the District and serve a valid and proper public purpose shall be paid for by credit card. However, under no circumstances shall credit cards be used for personal purchases or the purchase of alcoholic beverages regardless of whether the purchase of such beverages is made in connection with a meal. Use of credit cards in an unauthorized or illegal manner may result in revocation of credit card privileges, disciplinary action and/or, where appropriate, may require the user to pay any and all inappropriate charges, including finance charges and interest assessed in connection with the purchase. Additionally, any officer or employee of the District who knowingly misuses a credit card account is guilty of the criminal offense of misuse of credit cards. Violations will be reported to the appropriate law enforcement authorities and any applicable licensure board(s).

The maximum limit for any credit card account shall be \$50,000.

Subject to the discretion of the Board and the approval of the Treasurer/CFO, credit cards may be used for eligible goods and services including reasonable meal expenses (both in-town and out-of-town), including a maximum gratuity of twenty percent (20%), but excluding alcoholic beverages.

Officers and employees are liable in person and upon official bond for any unauthorized use of credit cards and any officer or employee who suspects the loss, theft, or possibility of unauthorized use of a credit card

11/4/2020 BoardDocs® PL

must notify the Treasurer/CFO immediately, who shall notify the Board.

The Board prohibits the use of debit card accounts except for the receipt of grant monies. Any officer or employee of the District who uses a debit card account for any other purpose is guilty of the criminal offense of misuse of credit cards.

Use of the District credit card for any cash withdrawal transaction is strictly prohibited.

The Treasurer/CFO shall retain general possession and control of the credit card account or presentation instruments related to an account, such as credit cards and checks.

The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines that specify those employees authorized to use credit cards, the types of expenses which can be paid by credit card, and their proper supervision and use. Inappropriate or illegal use of the credit card and/or failure to strictly comply with the limitations and requirements set forth in the administrative guidelines may result in a loss of credit card privileges, disciplinary action, up to and including termination, personal responsibility for any and all inappropriate charges, including finance charges and interest assessed in connection with the purchase, and/or possible referral to law enforcement authorities for prosecution. Violations will also be reported to the applicable licensure board(s).

The Board authorizes the following employees to use District credit cards: Employees of the District on an as-needed basis.

Each request for use of a District credit card shall contain:

- A. date needed,
- B. date to be returned,
- C. purpose,
- D. authorization.

Upon receipt of a District credit card, employees shall:

- A. inform merchants that the purchase is for "official School District business" and is not subject to State or local sales tax;
 - However, if the merchant fails to waive the tax, the employee shall pay it. For large purchases where the merchant refuses to waive the tax, the employee shall present a tax exemption form.
- B. maintain credit cards in a secure fashion and prevent unauthorized charges to the account;
- C. use reasonable care when making purchases online, refrain from providing the credit card number to unknown online merchants, and do not auto-save credit card number for any online account;
- D. maintain sufficient documentation of all purchases, including, but not limited to, charge receipts, original cash register slip or other detailed receipt, and invoices;
- E. provide documentation of all purchases to the Treasurer/CFO in a timely manner to ensure prompt payment;
- F. immediately notify his/her immediate supervisor and the Treasurer/CFO if the card is lost or stolen, or if s/he becomes aware of a data breach which may involve the card;
- G. refrain from allowing anyone else to use the credit card or account number;

11/4/2020

BoardDocs® PL

H. refrain from splitting the costs of an invoice or purchase in order to circumvent the credit card process and established, pre-approved single purchase limits, monthly spending limits, and/or funds availability.

The officer or employee is liable in person and upon any official bond to reimburse the District the amount for which the officer or employee does not provide itemized receipts in accordance with the credit card policy described herein.

After use, District credit cards are to be returned to the Treasurer/CFO along with appropriate receipt copies of all charges within one (1) business days upon completion of any approved use.

Employees, when possible, shall include an original cash register slip or other detailed receipt (i.e., a receipt from a restaurant itemizing all purchases made), in addition to the receipt copy of all charges. In addition, employees shall include, shipping documents and receipts received with the merchandise.

Failure to return District credit cards and/or receipts within the above-referenced time period may result in the suspension of credit card privileges and/or charges being deemed unrelated or unsubstantiated.

Employees shall be responsible for any and all unrelated or unsubstantiated purchases and shall be required to make full reimbursement to the District within thirty (30) business days.

The Treasurer/CFO will keep a record of all credit card uses and review and approve all purchases to verify that the expenses are incurred in connection with Board-approved or school-related activities, are for the benefit of the District, and serve a valid and proper public purpose prior to disbursing public funds for payment of such expenses.

The Treasurer/CFO shall file a report with the Board annually, detailing all rewards received based on the use of District's credit card account.

Revised 11/6/17

© Neola 2018

Legal

R.C. 2921.01, 2913.21, 3313.311



Book

Policy Manual

Section

Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title

PROCUREMENT CARDS

Code

po6424 New

Status

6424 - PROCUREMENT CARDS

The Board of Education recognizes that procurement cards offer a convenient and efficient method of purchasing minor goods and services, and therefore authorizes the use of procurement cards. The Board authorizes the Treasurer/CFO to obtain procurement cards for use with Board-approved vendors. The name of the District shall appear on each card.

Procurement cards are cards issued to authorized employees to make purchases of designated items at authorized businesses, and are linked to either a credit card or bank account. They function like a credit card, except that there are more options for spending controls.

The Treasurer/CFO shall establish per purchase and per month dollar limits with each voucher for every procurement card, the total value of which shall not exceed \$50,000 per month. The Treasurer/CFO may also establish limits on the number of purchases that may be made per day, week, or month with the card. Purchases must be limited to items in the following Merchant Category Codes:

- A. office supplies
- B. printing and stationery
- C. catering and other food purchases
- D. computers and software
- E. other purchases approved by the Treasurer/CFO on a case-by-case basis.

The bank manages the procurement card and will provide invoices at least monthly. The Treasurer/CFO will approve these invoices prior to payment being made. Employees shall submit itemized receipts within one day after purchases are made.

The Board authorized the following employees to use procurement cards:

A. all employees of the District on an as-needed basis

Employees who use a procurement card are subject to all procedures and restrictions that apply to the use of credit cards summarized in Policy 6423, as well as administrative guidelines developed by the Treasurer/CFO.

T1/4/2U2U BoardDocs® PL

All approved cardholders must agree to abide by procurement card procedures and regulations set forth in this policy as well as Policy 6423 and relevant administrative guidelines. All transactions must be made by the individual to whom the card is issued. Employees are responsible for the security and physical custody of the card. Lost or stolen cards shall be reported immediately to the Treasurer/CFO.

Employees may use procurement cards only for school-related purposes in accordance with State law and Board policy. Procurement cards shall not be used or circumvent the general purchasing procedures required by Ohio law and Board policy. The procurement card may never be used to purchase alcohol or personal items or services, nor is the personal gain of credit card rewards such as bonus points, frequent flyer miles, or any other affinity program reward program permitted under any circumstances.

Employees shall be responsible for any and all unrelated or unsubstantiated purchases and shall be required to make full reimbursement to the District within thirty (30) business days.

Cardholders will immediately surrender their cards upon request of the Treasurer/CFO for administrative reasons and shall surrender their cards upon separation from employment. This policy and related administrative guideline cannot cover every issue, exception, or contingency that may arise during the cardholder use of the procurement card.

The Treasurer/CFO shall conduct independent regular reviews of each cardholder's activity to verify that the purchasing card is being used in accordance with this policy and administrative guidelines. Prices for commonly priced items should be periodically verified to prevent schemes of purposeful price inflation.

© Neola 2020



Book Policy Manual

Section Policies Recommended for the BOE (39.1 Fall 2020 Update)

Title RELIGIOUS/PATRIOTIC CEREMONIES AND OBSERVANCES

Code po8800 jlw 09.24.2020

Status

Adopted October 12, 2015

8800 - RELIGIOUS/PATRIOTIC CEREMONIES AND OBSERVANCES

Decisions of the United States Supreme Court have made it clear that it is not the province of a public school to advance or inhibit religious beliefs or practices. Under the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution, this remains the inviolate province of the individual and the church of his/her choice. The rights of any minority, no matter how small, must be protected. No matter how well intended, either official or unofficial sponsorship of religiously-oriented activities by the school are offensive to some and tend to supplant activities which should be the exclusive province of individual religious groups, churches, private organizations, or the family.

District staff members shall not use prayer, religious readings, or religious symbols as a devotional exercise or in an act of worship or celebration. The District shall not act as a disseminating agent for any person or outside agency for any religious or anti-religious document, book, or article. Distribution of such materials on District property by any party shall be in accordance with Policy 7510 and AG 7510A - Use of District Facilities and Policy 9700 and AG 9700 - Relations with Special Interest Groups.

The Board acknowledges that it is prohibited from adopting any policy or rule respecting or promoting an establishment of religion or prohibiting any student from the free, individual, and voluntary exercise or expression of the student's religious beliefs. However, such exercise or expression may be limited to lunch periods or other non-instructional time periods when students are free to associate.

Any student enrolling in the District may choose to engage in religious expression before, during, or after school hours in the same manner and to the same extent that a student is permitted to engage in secular activities or expression. However, no student will be required to participate in any religious expression or activities.

Observance of religious holidays through devotional exercises or acts of worship is also prohibited. Acknowledgment of, explanation of, and teaching about religious holidays of various religions is encouraged. Celebration activities involving nonreligious decorations and use of secular works are permitted, but it is the responsibility of all faculty members to ensure that such activities are strictly voluntary, do not place an atmosphere of social compulsion or ostracism on minority groups or individuals, and do not interfere with the regular school program.

The Board shall not conduct or sanction a baccalaureate service in conjunction with graduation ceremonies.

The Board shall not include religious invocations, benedictions, or formal prayer at any school-sponsored event.

TI/4/2020 BOARDUOCS® PL

At the discretion of the Superintendent, a moment of silence may be provided each school day for prayer, reflection, or meditation upon a moral, philosophical, or patriotic theme. However, under no circumstances shall students be compelled to participate.

The flag of the United States shall be raised above each school and/or at other appropriate places during all school sessions, weather permitting.

The mottoes of the United States of America ("In God We Trust") and the State of Ohio ("With God, All Things Are Possible") shall be displayed in an appropriate manner in a classroom, auditorium, or cafeteria of a school building of the District, if copies of the mottoes or money to purchase copies of the mottoes are donated to the District. The donated or purchased copies of the mottoes shall meet the applicable design requirements as provided by statute.

Furthermore, the Board requires that an observance be scheduled each year on or about Veterans Day to convey the meaning and significance of that day to all students and staff. The amount of time each school devotes to this observance shall be at least one (1) hour or, in schools that schedule class periods of less than one (1) hour, at least one (1) standard class period. The Board shall determine the specific activities to constitute observance in each school in the District after consulting with the school's administrators.

Districts are required to hold an educational program pertaining to the United States Constitution on September 17th of each year, Constitution Day. Whenever September 17th falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday, the Constitution Day observance shall be held during the preceding or following week.

Professional staff members are required to lead students in the Pledge of Allegiance at an appropriate time each school day. However, no student or staff shall be compelled/required to participate in the recitation of the Pledge. Additionally, the Board prohibits the intimidation of any student by other students or staff for the purposes of coercing participation. The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines that require any staff member who conducts this activity does it at an appropriate time, in an appropriate manner, and with due regard to the need to protect the rights and the privacy of a nonparticipating student. Wording of the Pledge of Allegiance as set forth in the United States Code shall not be altered.

© Neola 20202012

Legal

Lee vs. Weisman, 505 U.S. 577 (1992)

Gregoire vs. Centennial School District, 907 F.2d 1366, (3rd Cir. 1990)

R.C. 3313.601, 3313.602, 3313.76, 3313.77, 3313.801, 3314.03(A)(11)(h)

20 U.S.C. 4071 et seq.

Section 111 of Division J of Publ. L 108-447

2020 Eaton Community Schools

PLAN FOR THE EDUCATION OF THE GIFTED

This document includes the identification and service plan for Eaton Community School District during the 2020-2021 school year.

Prepared by: Katie Pearson, Montgomery County ESC Gifted Supervisor



"The mission of the Eaton Community School District is to become a district of educators working collaboratively to create an educational environment that fulfills the diverse needs of students through progressive and challenging curricula. Eaton Community Schools wants to achieve an environment that fosters critical thinking, encourages creativity, values learning and equips our students with the skills to become successful members of the global community."

Gifted students' intellectual capacity, rate of learning and potential for creative contributions demand experiences apart from, but connected to, the regular classroom. Eaton Community School District is charged with the responsibility to provide students with educational alternatives that teach, challenge, and expand their knowledge, while simultaneously stressing the development of independent and self-directed learners who continuously generate questions, analyze, synthesize, and evaluate information and ideas.

- ☐ Based on students' learning needs, appropriate types and levels of acceleration and enrichment will be offered in grades K-12. These opportunities will be evaluated each year and adjustments made based on students' learning needs.
- Design, develop, and implement high quality curriculum that is supported by research –based models appropriate for gifted students. This curriculum is aligned with and extends the regular classroom curriculum.

Identification:

Eaton Community Schools uses the following assessment instruments for screening and identification pursuant to ORC 3324.01-07.

Superior Cognitive Ability-

□ NAGLIERI NONVERBAL ABILITIES TEST 3: Whole grade screening in grades 1st and 5th

Screening score: 92-94 NPR

Identification: 95 NPR

□ COGNITIVE ABILITIES TEST (FORM 7/8)

Screening score: above 126

Identification: 127 or higher (K-2)

129 or higher (3-12)

☐ *WISC-V*: K-12 by referral

Screening score: 126

Identification: 127

Specific Academic Ability---

Last updated 10/9/2020

Page 2

- □ NWEA MAP—Common Core State Standards Alignment, complete Reading and Math only: Grade 3 Reading and Math, Grades 6-10 Reading, Grades 6-7 Math Whole Grade screening
 - 2nd graders will take the MAP 2-5
 - Three administrations per year: fall, winter and spring
 - Map data is also used to determine small group screening sessions using ITBS

Identification: 95-99 PR

- □ IOWA TEST OF BASIC SKILLS (Form E) Complete/Core Battery: K-12 by referral and rescreen Grade 2 and 5 Whole Grade screening Core (Reading and Math) Identification: 95-99
- ☐ ACT Assessment Program (AAP): 6-12: Whole grade screening grade 11 Spring testing

Identification: 95-99 PR Reading, Math and Science

Creative Thinking Ability---

□ **RENZULLI GIFTED RATING SCALE** Whole grade screening for all students 69th PR or higher on NNAT 3 assessment

Screening: 86

Identification: 90

□ TORRANCE TEST OF CREATIVE THINKING ABILITY:

Visual and Performing Arts--- By referral

☐ GIFTED AND TALENTED EVALUATION SCALES (GATES), Section 5

Screening: Criteria 60 – 77

Identification: Criteria 78 or higher

□ ODE RUBRIC OF PERFORMANCE A/O PORTFOLIO

Additional Notes regarding Identification:

Service Model—2020-21

Gifted Programming at Grades K-8:

It is recommended to building administrators ensure students identified as Gifted are clustered appropriately in groups of 3-8 students within the general education classroom. The general education classroom teachers who are providing gifted services will participate in professional development regarding meeting the needs of gifted learners through differentiated lessons.

Superior Cognitive identifications will be serviced in the clustered math classroom. Creative Thinking identifications will be serviced in the clustered English/language arts (ELA)

classroom

Educators will write Written Education Plans for identified Gifted Learners in collaboration with the Gifted Supervisor.

Eighth grade Algebra acceleration plans will be written annually in collaboration with the Gifted Supervisor and the teacher of record.

Students in grades 7 and 8 may be considered for College Credit Plus courses as part of their service plan.

High School Programming:

Service Options: Students in grades 9-12 have the opportunity to choose from a variety of ODE accepted courses such as College Credit Plus, AP, Advanced, International Baccalaureate, and Honors when scheduling classes. The general education classroom teachers will participate in professional development regarding meeting the needs of gifted learners through differentiated lessons in specific content areas.

Educators will write Written Education Plans for identified Gifted Learners in collaboration with the Gifted Supervisor.

CCP students' Written Education Plans will be written in collaboration with the high school guidance counselor and the gifted supervisor using the course syllabus as a guide for the goal of course completion.

Service Documentation:

Gifted students will have records annually provided by a qualified service provider that outlines their services and set specific goals to be achieved over the course of the year to ensure growth and enrichment.

Written Education Plan Timeline:

Initial WEPs will be completed by sent out district wide the week of November 9th to be signed.

Mid-Year WEPs will be completed by March 1th and sent home with students.

End of Year WEPs will be completed by the last day of school and sent home with final grade cards.

Additional Notes:

- *Acceleration should always be of consideration when determining most appropriate service options for individual students. This should include both subject and grade acceleration. It is recommended the coordinator of gifted programming communicates with the various preschool educators/ facilities regarding early-entrance, etc. The acceleration policy should be shared with district staff members.
- *Early entrance to kindergarten is an option for qualifying students as a gifted service.
- *The number of students identified each year should be considered and services adjusted to meet the needs of the population.
- *The social/ emotional component of working with gifted students is critical and should not be overlooked. Counselors must work together (with the classroom teacher when appropriate) to ensure the social/ emotional needs are met.

- *Students who have dual exceptionalities are to be offered appropriate services in accordance to the area(s) of identification and offered these opportunities in an equitable manner.
- *Parents may decline services for their student on an annual basis and must have appropriate documentation on file for the student.
- *High school juniors and seniors that are identified in social studies and have completed their graduation credits are encouraged to take a course that aligns with their identification however are not required.



Outline of Support Services from MCESC

District ID and Service Plan

Create ID + Service Plan

Update Parent Brochure/ Website

State Gifted Reporting

Gifted Student District/ Building Reports

Create and Share District Level Reports

Create and Share Building Level Reports

Create and Share Reports for Teachers

Accelerations and Testing Requests

Coordinate all Testing for Acceleration Requests

Assist in Team Meeting for all Acceleration Requests

Identification of Gifted Students

Analyze MAP Results

Create Notification Letters/ Labels/ EMIS Reporting

Coordinate Retesting Schedule

Coordinate Processes for Referrals

Coordinate Whole Grade Testing

Service for Gifted Students

Provide Professional Development

Consult with District Leadership on Service Options/ Class Offerings

Assist with Cluster Grouping of Gifted Students

Assist educators in the writing, review and evaluation of Written Education Plans

Google WEP process

Memorandum of Understanding Winterguard Supplemental Position

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by a District Board of Education ("Board") and the I ("Association") this day of November, 2020.			
WHEREAS , the Board and Association have entered ("CBA") which is effective through June 30, 2021; and	into a Collective Bargaining Agreement		
WHEREAS, Addendum B of the CBA governs issuance	e of supplemental contracts by the Board;		
WHEREAS , the Board and Association desire to classif the CBA for purposes of the Academic Supplemental Sa	•		
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by a that the following language shall constitute their Agreen			
1. A supplemental contract shall be issued for Wint shall be compensated under Class G of the Acade			
2. The parties agree that although this MOU exists separately and independently of the CBA, it is binding upon the parties and thus has the full force and effect of the CBA. This MOU may be enforced through the grievance and arbitration procedures of the CBA. Except as noted above, no other section of the collective bargaining agreement is modified by this MOU. Furthermore, no other agreements shall serve to alter the provisions of the CBA unless mutually agreed to, in writing by and between the parties.			
For the Association For	the Board of Education		
BY: BY	·		
4817-5924-0911v2			

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into this day of November 2020, by and between the Board of Education of Eaton Community Schools (the "Board") and the Eaton Classroom Teachers Association (the "Union"). The parties will collectively be referred to as the "Parties."
WHEREAS, the Board and the Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement ("CBA"), which is effective through June 30, 2020; and
WHEREAS, the CBA sets out the duties and compensation for members of the Union; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Eaton Community Schools (the "District") desires to fairly compensate members of the Union who participate on District-wide committees facilitated by administrators of the District, and
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to agree to compensation for some of the time that members of the Union spend in meetings for District-wide committees that occur outside the regularly scheduled school day.
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Parties agree as follows:
 Members of a District-wide committee facilitated by an administrator of the District shall be compensated for attending committee meetings that occur outside the regular school day at a rate of seventy-five dollars (\$75.00) per meeting. Meetings shall not exceed two (2) hours in duration. Committee members may attend meetings virtually with the approval of the Administrator who is facilitating the meeting.
Such compensation shall be paid only if:
 a. The meeting occurs outside of the regular school day (meetings that occur during the school day will not be compensated); and
b. The member attends the meeting and fully participates in the work of the committee. Members recognize that participating on these committees may require additional work that will take place outside of committee meetings for which no additional compensation will be provided.

- 2. The committees that will receive the compensation described in paragraph 1 are: Eaton Professional Development Committee (PDC), Eaton Technology Committee, Curriculum Evaluation Team, Ohio Teacher Evaluation System Committee (OTES), Multi-Tiered System of Support Team (MTSS), Building Leadership Team, and Positive Behavior Support Team (PBIS).
- 3. Compensation for attending meetings of District-wide committees facilitated by an administrator of the District shall be paid on or before June 30th of each year. If an individual serves on multiple committees, he/she will be compensated separately for each committee that meets the above stated requirements.
- 4. Membership for each committee and the number of meetings for each committee shall rest within the sole discretion of District administration. Committee members chosen by District administration are expected to attend all meetings of their respective committees. Employees are permitted to decline membership in committees. Any such refusal to participate in a committee shall not negatively impact an employee's evaluations.
- 5. The Parties intend this MOU to supersede any provision of the CBA to the extent its terms conflicts with the CBA. With the exception of the agreements set forth in this MOU, all other provisions of the CBA currently in effect between the Parties shall remain in full force and effect for the term of the CBA and no other agreements shall serve to alter the provisions of the CBA unless agreed to, in writing, between the parties hereto.
- 6. This MOU shall automatically expire on June 30, 2021.

For the Board:	For the Union:		
Jeff Parker,	date	Aaron Hemmert,	date
Superintendent	Pre	President, ECTA	

4835-8801-0959v2